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Note 31-Dec-21 31-Dec-20

SAR SAR

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net (6) 225 916 614 216 934 066
Investment properties, net (7) 229 604 178 232 535 220
Intangaible assets, net (8) 3 848 773 4 389 725
Right-of-use asset  (Net) (9)  337 752 -                     
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries (10) -                  300 000
Investments in associates, net (11) 20 447 907 19 154 139
Financial investments at fair value through OCI (12) 47 900 000 42 000 000
Due from a related party (Non Current) �13�£� -                  444 313
Total non-current assets 528 055 224 515 757 463
Current assets

Biological assets (14) 24 182 051 12 083 167
Inventory, net (15) 21 161 742 23 078 433
Accounts receivable, net (16) 37 375 244 28 345 727
Prepaid expenses and other debtors, net (17) 8 311 380 14 396 998
Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss (18) -                  515 686
Cash and cash equivalents (19) 15 364 149 6 427 154
Total current assets 106 394 566 84 847 165
Total assets 634 449 790 600 604 628

Equity and Liabilities 

Shareholders equity

Share capital (20) 500 000 000 500 000 000
Statutory reserve (21) 85 409 994 85 409 994
Reserve for revaluation of financial investments at FVTOCI 2 956 343 (2 967 321)
Accumulated losses (44 160 342) (58 470 049)
Equity of the shareholders of the  parent company 544 205 995 523 972 624
Non-controlling interests 1 013 613 1 403 098
Total equity 545 219 608 525 375 722
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Long term loans - non-current portion (22) 21 170 954 4 074 975
(PSOR\HHV¶�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�SODQ�REOLJDWLRQV (23) 8 935 262 8 544 701
Lease Liabilities (9)  269 073 -                     
Total non-current liabilities 30 375 289 12 619 676
Current liabilities

Long term loans - current portion (22) 5 951 652 11 961 557
Lease Liabilities (9)  78 969 -                     
Due to a related party �13�¨�  15 000 -                     
Distributions of shareholders' entitlements 5 630 528 5 711 869
Commitment against the loan guarantee of an associate (24) 14 619 841 14 619 841
Accrued expenses, and other creditors (25) 6 779 733 7 391 931
Accounts payable 13 127 674 8 515 801
Zakat provision (26) 12 651 496 14 408 231
Total current liabilities 58 854 893 62 609 230
Total liabilities 89 230 182 75 228 906
Total equity and liabilities 634 449 790 600 604 628

Financial Manager Chief Executive�
Officer

Chairman of Board�
of Directors

Ehab Refaei Baddour Nasser Al�
Rashoudi

Ahmed Mohammed Al�
Sanea
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The accompanying notes (1) to (41) form an integral part of these  consolidated  financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2021 2020

SAR SAR

Revenues (28) 98 509 218 85 071 604

Gains from change in fair value of biological assets (14) 12 736 367 6 526 546

Cost of revenues (29) (70 519 521) (60 813 341)

Gross profit 40 726 064 30 784 809

Main operations expenses

Selling and distribution expenses (30) (6 347 661) (5 164 202)

General and administrative expenses (31) (22 572 095) (16 370 600)

Provision for expected credit loss -                    ( 799 420)

Operating profit 11 806 308 8 450 587
Unrealized losses from investments at fair value through
profit or loss

-                     124 653

Group's share in the profit of the associate (11) 1 270 104  987 579
Other income (32) 2 764 728 4 087 761
Income from operation 15 841 140 13 650 580
Finance cost (33) ( 779 995) ( 781 004)

Net profit for the year before zakat 15 061 145 12 869 576
Zakat (26) (1 778 239) (2 086 217)

Net profit for the year after zakat 13 282 906 10 783 359

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not subsequently be reclassified to profit
or loss 

Actuarial profit / (losses) from (PSOR\HHV¶ defined benefit
plan obligations

(23)  562 315 ( 130 079)

Group's share of other comprehensive income of the
associate

(11)  23 664  32 679

Change in the fair value of investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income

(12) 5 900 000  810 000

Total other comprehensive income 6 485 979  712 600

Total  comprehensive income for the year 19 768 885 11 495 959
Net profit for the year attributable to:

Shareholders of the parent company 13 750 333 10 514 530
Non-controlling interests ( 467 427)  268 829
Net profit for the year 13 282 906 10 783 359
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable 
to:

Shareholders of the parent company 20 233 370 11 227 130
Non-controlling interests ( 464 485)  268 829
Total comprehensive income for the year 19 768 885 11 495 959

Earnings per share (27) 0.24                   0.17                            

Basic and diluted earning share in net profit for the period (27) 0.27                   0.22                            

Financial Manager Chief Executive�
Officer

Chairman of Board of�
Directors

Ehab Refaei Baddour Nasser Al-
Rashoudi Ahmed Mohammed Al-Sanea

The accompanying notes (1) to (41) form an integral part of these  consolidated  financial statements�
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�A SAUDI JOINT-STOCK COMPANY�

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR SAR
Balance as of 1 January 2020 (Amended) 500 000 000 85 409 994 (3 810 000) (68 854 500) 512 745 494 -                   512 745 494
Net profit for the year -                 -                   -                        10 514 530 10 514 530  268 829 10 783 359
Other comprehensive income for the year -                 -                    842 679 ( 130 079)  712 600   0  712 600
Total comprehensive income for the year   0   0  842 679 10 384 451 11 227 130  268 829 11 495 959
The share of the non-controlling interest in the capital 
of the subsidiary

  0   0   0   0 1 134 269 1 134 269
Balance as of 1 January 2021 500 000 000 85 409 994 (2 967 321) (58 470 049) 523 972 624 1 403 098 525 375 722

Net profit for the year - -                   -                        13 750 333 13 750 333 ( 467 427) 13 282 906
Other comprehensive income for the year - -                   5 923 664  559 374 6 483 038  2 942 6 485 980
Total comprehensive income for the year   0   0 5 923 664 14 309 707 20 233 371 ( 464 485) 19 768 886
The share of the non-controlling interest in the capital 
of the subsidiary

-                 -                   -                        -              -                    75 000  75 000
Balance as of 1 December 2021 500 000 000 85 409 994 2 956 343 (44 160 342) 544 205 995 1 013 613 545 219 608

Financial Manager

Ehab Refaei

JAZAN ENERGY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY (JAZADCO)�

CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share capital Statutory reserve

Reserve for�
revaluation of�

financial investments�
at FVOCI

Accumulated 
losses Non-controlling�

interests Total EquityTotal

The accompanying notes (1) to (41) form an integral part of these  consolidated  financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer

Baddour Nasser Al-Rashoudi

Chairman of Board of Directors
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3



�A SAUDI JOINT-STOCK COMPANY�

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021 2020
SAR SAR

Operating activities
Net profit for the year before zakat 15 061 145 12 869 576
Adjustments for the following items:-

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8 332 818 7 970 818
Depreciation of investments properties 3 162 021 3 141 553
Amortization of intangible assets 1 337 028  950 478
Gains from change in fair value of biological assets (12 736 367) (6 526 546)
Amortization of Right to use assets  84 438 -                  
Closing balance of Projects under progress 1 693 117  139 002
Provision for expected credit loss -                  799 420
Group's share in the profit of the associate (1 270 104) ( 987 579)
Unrealized losses from investments at fair value through profit or loss -                 ( 124 653)
Provisions no longer required  220 000 -                  
Provision for employees defined benefits plan obligations 1 104 812 1 354 339
Discounts of expedited payments (1 049 998) -                  
Finance costs  779 995  781 004

16 718 905 20 367 412
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Inventory 1 696 691 5 895 007
Biological assets  637 483 (5 556 621)
Accounts receivable (9 029 517) (14 599 124)
Prepaid expenses, and other debtors 5 356 660 (5 660 908)
Accounts payable 4 611 873 (1 540 152)
Accrued expenses, and other creditors (1 779 046) ( 47 536)
Due to related parties  15 000  255 687
Finance cost paid -                 ( 331 098)
Zakat paid (3 534 974) ( 370 000)
(PSOR\HHV¶�GHILQHG�EHQHILWV�SODQ�REOLJDWLRQV�SDLG ( 386 836) (1 247 358)
Collection from Investments at fair value through profit or loss  515 686 -                  
Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities 14 821 925 (2 834 691)
Cash flows from investing activities

Paid to purchase property, plant and equipment (10 227 149) (4 746 345)
Due to related parties (Non-current)  444 313 ( 700 000)
The proceeds from the disposal of property and equipment  27 283 -                  
Paid in an investment in a subsidiary  300 000 ( 300 000)
Paid to purchase intangible assets ( 796 076) ( 130 964)
Paid to Projects in progress (9 039 596) -                  
Net cash issued to acquire subsidiaries -                 (2 093 500)
Right to use assets ( 422 190) -                  
Purchase Investment properties -                 (1 580 370)

Net cash (used in) investing activities (19 713 415) (9 551 179)
financing activities

/RDQV¶�DGGLWLRQV 18 508 452 -                  
Lease Liabilities  322 191 -                  
Payments to non-controlling interest capital  75 000  3 500
Long-term loans paid (4 995 817) (1 794 452)
Shareholders' Distributions ( 81 341) ( 1 994)

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities 13 828 485 (1 792 946)

Net Cash flow 8 936 995 (14 178 816)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6 427 154 20 605 970

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 15 364 149 6 427 154

Non-cash transaction

Transferred from real estate investments to property, plant and equipment -                 5 135 802

Transferred advance payments for the purchase of intangible assets into intangible assets -                 2 089 934

Financial Manager Chief Executive�
Officer

Chairman of Board�
of Directors

Ehab Refaei Baddour Nasser Al�
Rashoudi

Ahmed Mohammed�
Al-Sanea

JAZAN ENERGY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY (JAZADCO)�

CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  

The accompanying notes (1) to (41) form an integral part of these  consolidated  financial statements.
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1- SUMMRY FOR THE GROUP 

1-1 Parent Company  
Jazan Energy And Development Company (JAZADCO) was registered as a Saudi joint-stock company 
with Commercial Registration number 5900005403 issued in Jazan on 29 Safar 1414 H (corresponding 
to  17 August 1993).  The Share Capital of the Company is SAR 5��,000,000 divided into 5�,000,000 
shares with a nominal value of SAR 10. 
The activities of the company in the cultivation of mangoes, the cultivation of shrimp in the seas, the 
preservation of fish and fish products by cooling or freezing, cooling and freezing of fruits, the 
production, and packaging of pure filtered water, hotels, and heritage hotels, the purchase and sale of 
land and real estate, their division, and off-plan sales activities. 
A license was obtained to practice the company's activities as follows: 
Authorization number Date  City  Purpose  

2852 / p 31 Dhu al-Qidah 1428H Jazan Producing healthy drinking water 
5/3/6524 1 Safar 1425 H Jazan Shrimp breeding 
5/3/6526 1 Safar 1425 H Jazan Shrimp breeding 
1279 29 Rabi` II 1439 H Sabya Producing healthy drinking water 
2210 13 Rajab 1438 H Samtah Frozen shrimp production  

 
The  consolidated  financial statements include the assets, liabilities, and results of the parent Company's 
operations and the below branch: 

Branch name CR No. City  Activity 

Jazadco Real Estate Company 5900011471 Jazan 
Buying, selling, and renting land 
and real estate. 

Jazadco Real Estate Company 5900114667 Jazan 
Buying, selling, and renting land 
and real estate. 

Jazan Development Company Factory for 
the production of healthy drinking water 5906016169 Sabya 

Bottled drinking water in closed 
containers. 

Branch of Jazan Development Company 
(JAZADCO) 5900016170 Jazan 

Establishing fish farms and 
practicing fishing. 

Branch of Jazan Development Company 
(JAZADCO) 5900016168 Jazan 

Establishing agricultural nurseries 
and fruit seedlings. 

Branch of Jazan Development Company 
(JAZADCO) for preparing, freezing, and 
packing shrimp 5907035800 Samtah 

Preserving fish and importing 
feed. 

 
- The address of the company's head office is in Jazan, Corniche Road, PO Box 127, Kingdom of 

Saudi Arabia. 
 
2-1 The  consolidated  financial statements include the financial statements of JAZAN ENERGY AND 
DEVELOPMENT COMPANY (JAZADCO) (the company) or (parent company) and their local subsidiares 
(the company and it iV�VXEVLGLDU\�FRPSDQ\�KHUHLQDIWHU�UHIHUUHG�WR�DV�WKH�³*URXS´�� 
-The subsidiares for the company represented in the following:- 
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Name of the 
subsidiary 
company 

Country of 
incorporation 

The main activity of the 
company 

Ownership 
percentage % 
31 December 

2021 

Ownership 
percentage % 
31 December 

2020 
Mango Jazan 
Trading 
Company 

KSA The main activities of the 
company are retail via the Internet. 65% 65% 

Fsh Day 
Company KSA 

Wholesale of fish and aquaculture, 
retail sale of fish and other seafood 
and seafood products, online retail, 
transportation of refrigerated and 
frozen goods 

80% 80% 

 
1-3 On 10/23/1441H corresponding to 06/15/2020G, the group acquired 80% of the equity shares of 
the Fish Day Company, registered in the commercial registry in Riyadh with No.1010894462, 
According to the company's articles of association, its first financial statements are prepared as of 31 
December 2021. 
 

2- BASIS OF PREPARATION THE  CONSOLIDATED  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

2-1 ACCOUNTING STANDARDS APPLIED 
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other 
standards and pronouncements that are issued by SOCPA �� 
The Capital Market Authority has allowed listed companies to use the fair value model or contiue used 
cost model to measure the property, and investment property Starting from 1 January 2022. It also 
obligated listed companies to continue to use the cost model to measure the property, plant and 
equipment, and intangible assets.  

 
2-2 ACCOUNTING CONVENTION / BASIS OF MEASUREMENT 

The  consolidated  financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accrual principle and 
going concern and on a historical cost convention unless IFRS requires the use of another measurement 
basis, as indicated in the applied accounting policies (Note 3). 

 
2-3  FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY  

These  consolidated  financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyals, which is the Group's functional 
and presentation currency. 

 
2-4  BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION  

- These Consolidated Financial Statements comprising the Consolidated Statement of Financial 
Position, Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive 
Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and 
notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group include assets, liabilities and the 
results of the operations of the Company and its subsidiary, as set out in note (1). The Company 
DQG�LWV�VXEVLGLDU\�DUH�FROOHFWLYHO\�UHIHUUHG�WR�DV�WKH�³*URXS´� 

- Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed 
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to 
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affect those returns through its power over the entity. Specifically, the Group controls an investee 
if, and only if, the Group has: 

x Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct 
the relevant activities of the investee); 

x Exposure to risks, and has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the 
investee; and 

x The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. 
 

- Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this 
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an 
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has 
power over an investee, including: 

x The contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee. 
x Rights arising from other contractual arrangements. 
x TKH�*URXS¶V�YRWLQJ�ULJKWV�DQG�SRWHQWLDO�YRWLQJ�ULJKWV� 

 

- The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate 
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control assessing. 

- Non-controlling intereVW�DUH�PHDVXUHG�DW�WKHLU�SURSRUWLRQDWH�VKDUH�RI�WKH�DFTXLUHH¶V�LGHQtifiable net 
assets at the date of acquisition with fair value. 

- Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of not wholly owned subsidiaries are shown 
separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of financial position, 
respectively.  

- Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which group control until the date on which control 
ceases. 

 

- The group uses the acquisition method for accounting when transferring control to the group, 
where: 

x  The cost of the acquisition is measured at the fair value of the specific assets 
acquired. 

x  The excess of the cost of acquisition plus the fair value of non-controlling interests 
over the net value of the identifiable assets acquired as goodwill is recorded in the 
consolidated statement of financial position. 

x  Acquisition-related costs are recorded when incurred and included in administrative 
expenses. 

 
- NCI is measured at their proportionate share of thH�DFTXLUHH¶V�LGHQWLILDEOH�QHW�DVVHWV�DW�WKH�GDWH�RI�

acquisition. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed 
to the equity holders of the Parent Company and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results 
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. 

 

- All intra-group assets and liabilities, unrealised income and expenses and cash flows relating to 
transactions are eliminated in full on consolidation. When necessary, adjustments are made to the 
finDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� RI� VXEVLGLDULHV� WR� EULQJ� WKHLU� DFFRXQWLQJ� SROLFLHV� LQ� OLQH� ZLWK� WKH� *URXS¶V�
accounting policies. The Company and its subsidiary have the same reporting periods. 

 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted 
for as an equity transaction. 
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- If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, The following is done: 
x De-recognizes the assets (including the good will)  and liabilities of the subsidiary; 
x De-recognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest; 
x De-recognizes the cumulative translation differences, recorded in equity; 
x Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received; 
x Recognizes the fair value of any investment remaining; 
x Recognizes any surplus or deficit in the condensed consolidated statement of profit or 

loss; 
 

- The parent company's share in the previously listed components of other comprehensive profit is 
reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate and required when the group 
eliminates the directly related assets or liabilities. 

3- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTI NG POLICIES 
 

3-1 New IFRS standards, amendments to standards and interpretations not yet adopted 
The Group has applied the following amendments to the standards for the first time for their 
reporting periods commencing on 1 January 2021 
�Amendments to IFRS 7 and IFRS 16 Interest Rate Measurement Correction -Phase II 
Phase II adjustments address issues that arise from implementing reforms, including substituting 
standard rates for alternative prices. The Phase II amendments provide additional temporary 
exemptions from applying the hedge accounting requirements of IAS 39 and IFRS 9 to hedging 
relationships directly affected by the interest rate index reform. 
��$PHQGPHQW�WR�,)56�����³/HDVLQJ�&RQWUDFWV´�- Lease Concessions Related to the COVID-
19 Pandemic 
As a result of the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, rent concessions have been granted to 
tenants. In May 2020, the IASB published an amendment to IFRS 16 that provides an optional 
practical means for tenants to assess whether a rental concession is related to COVID-19. On 
March 31, 2021, the IASB published a further amendment to extend the date from June 30, 2021 
to June 30, 2022. Lessees can choose to account for lease concessions in the same way they 
would if there were no lease amendments In many cases, this results in accounting for the lien as 
variable lease payments in the period(s) in which the event or circumstance that gave rise to the 
reduced payment occurred. 
 
The application of these amendments does not have any material impact on the financial 
statements during the year. 
 

3.2 Standards issued that have not yet been implemented 
The following are the amendments to unapproved standards that were issued and are effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022, with early application permitted, but 
the Group did not apply them when preparing these financial statements. The Group does not 
expect to have a material impact on the non-consolidated financial statements prepared for a 
special purpose if the following standards and amendments are applied: 
� Classification of liabilities (amendments to IFRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements). 
These narrowly defined amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, clarify that 
liabilities are classified as current or non-current, depending on the rights in place at the end of 
the reporting period. The rating is not affected by the entity's expectations or by events after the 
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reporting date (for example, receipt of a waiver or breach of undertaking). The amendment also 
FODULILHV�ZKDW�,$6���PHDQV�ZKHQ�LW�UHIHUV�WR�WKH�³VHWWOHPHQW´�RI�DQ�REOLJDWLRQ� 
Amendments to IFRS 3 and IAS 16 and 37 
,)56����³%XVLQHVV�FRPELQDWLRQV´�LV�Xpdated to a reference in IFRS 
No. (3) for the conceptual framework for financial reporting without changing the accounting 
requirements for business combinations. 
,$6� ���� ³3URSHUW\�� SODQW� DQG� HTXLSPHQW´� SURKLELWV� D� JURXS� IURP� GHGXFWLQJ� IURP� WKH� FRVW� RI�
property, plant and equipment amounts received from the sale of items produced while the group 
prepares the asset for its intended use. Instead, the Group will recognize such sales proceeds and 
related costs in the statement of profit or loss. 
- IAS 37, 'Provisions, liabilities and contingent assets' specifies the costs that the group includes 
when assessing whether a contract will cause a loss. 
��$PHQGPHQWV�WR�,$6����6WDWHPHQW�RI�3UDFWLFH�1R�����DQG�,AS 8 
The amendments aim to improve accounting policy disclosures and help users of financial 
statements distinguish between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting 
policies. 
��&ODVVLILFDWLRQ�RI�DQ�DPHQGPHQW�WR�,$6���-Deferred tax relating to assets and liabilities arising 
from a single transaction 
These amendments require companies to recognize deferred tax on transactions that, on initial 
recognition, result in equal amounts of deductible and taxable temporary differences. 
 

3-3 ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED 
The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Group in preparing its 
consolidated financial statements to all accounting periods presented. 
 
3-3-1 Classification of assets and liabilities into current / non-current 
Assets: 
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the financial statements based on their classification 
into current / noncurrent items. The asset is current when: 

x It is expected to be realized or there is an intention to be sold or consumed it in a normal operating 
cycle, or 

x It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, or 
x It is expected to be realized within twelve months DIWHU�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ¶V�SHULRG��RU� 
x Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least ± twelve months after the financial reporting period. 
The group classifies all other assets as non-current assets. 
 

Liabilities: 
A liability is current when: 

x It is expected to be settled in a normal operating cycle, or 
x It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, or 
x It is due to be settled within twelve months after the financial reporting period, or 
x There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months 

after the financial reporting period. 
The group classifies all other liabilities as non-current assets. 
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3-3-2 Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purpose of preparing the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of 
balances with banks, cash on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturities of three 
months or less and other short-term highly liquid investments, if any, whose original maturity is 
three months or Less than the date of its creation and are available to the Group without any 
restrictions. It also includes overdraft accounts that are an integral part of the Group's cash 
management and are expected to be changed from overdrafts to current accounts. 
 
 

3-3-3 Inventory 
 Inventory is stated at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower Cost is determined as 
following: 
 

- Raw materials, consumables and spare parts: Purchase cost on a weighted average basis Cost of 
purchase includes the purchase price, custom duties, and the other taxes otherwise, those which 
refundable, later, from tax authorities and the costs of transportation and handling and other costs 
attributable directly to the acquisition and deduct the trade discounts and the reductions and other 
similar items when determines the cost of purchase. 

- Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of 
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. 

- The net realizable value consists of the estimated selling price less incremental completion costs 
and an appropriate share of selling and distribution expenses. Any decrease in the cost of 
inventories to the net realizable value should be recognized as an expense in the period in which 
the reduction occurs. Any reversal of impairment should be recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss in the period in which the reversal occurs. 

- Provision is made, where necessary, for any slow moving or defective inventory and the cost of the 
inventory is recognized as an expense and recognized in the cost of revenue. 
 

3-3-4 Property, plant and equipment   
A-Recognition and measurement  

- Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. The cost of acquisition of the asset includes all costs related to the 
acquisition of the asset. 

- An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized when it is disposal or no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 

- Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by 
comparing net disposal proceeds with the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and 
are recognized net of other income (expense) in profits or losses. 

- Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it results in increase in the future economic 
benefits and can be reliably measured. 

- Loan financing costs are capitalized to finance the creation of qualifying assets during the year 
required to complete and process the assets for the purpose. 

- Where significant portions of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
then accounted for as  items of property, plant and equipment. 
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- The cost of replacing an important part of the item of property, plant and equipment is recognized 
in the carrying amount of the item if potential future economic benefits are probable to flow to 
the Group and these costs can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the item being 
derecognized is eliminated when significant parts of the property, plant and equipment are 
required to be replaced over time. The Group recognizes such items as individual assets with 
specific useful lives and is depreciated accordingly. Similarly, when performing a major 
examination, its cost is included in the carrying amount of the property and equipment as a 
replacement if the inclusion criteria are met. Other repair and maintenance costs are included in 
the profits or losses as incurred. 
 
 

B-Depreciation  
- The cost less estimated residual value is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of 

the assets as follows. 
 

Useful lives Item 
33-66 Buildings 
5 Leasehold improvement  
6-20 Machinery and equipment 
10 Vehicles 
5-20 Furniture & fixtures 
20 Wells 
5-10 Computers 
10-40 Fruitful trees 
 Lands and capital work in progress 

are not depreciated. 
 

- The residual value and useful lives of the asset are reviewed in case there are indications of 
significant changes since the date of the last annual report and adjusted for future impact, when 
necessary. 
 
 

C-Capital works in progress 
- Capital work in progress at the end of the year includes certain assets that have been acquired but 

are not ready for the intended use. Capital work is carried at cost less any impairment recorded in 
value. These assets are transferred to related asset classes and depreciated when they are ready for 
use. 
 

3-3-4 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
Investment properties include (land, buildings, part of a building or land, or both) held by the 
Group for rental or capital appreciation, or both. Investment properties are measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is calculated on the basis 
of the depreciable value, which is the cost of the asset or any other amount in lieu of cost after 
deducting its residual value. The leased assets are depreciated over the term of the lease and their 
useful lives, whichever is shorter, unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain 
Ownership at the end of the lease term. Cost is amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of the investment properties. When parts of an investment property have different 
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items. (Major components) the investment property. 
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The cost of replacing part of an investment property is recognized at the carrying amount of the 
item if it is probable that future economic benefits embodied in that part will flow to the group and 
when the cost can be measured reliably, the carrying amount of that part replaced is derecognised. 
The cost of daily servicing of investment properties is recognized in the consolidated statement of 
profit or loss. 
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost representing construction work on the group's projects, 
including consultancy, demolition, site leveling, rock cutting, supervision, construction work and 
other costs attributable to the assets transportable to the site and its readiness to work for its 
intended purpose. Any gain or loss on disposal of investment properties (which is the difference 
between the sale proceeds and the book value of the disposed property) is recognized in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss. 
The useful lives of the principal components of these assets are: 
 

Useful lives Item 
33-66 Buildings 

 
3-3-6 Intangible Assets 

- Intangible assets (excluding goodwill) acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at 
cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization and impairment losses, if any. 

- The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either specific or indefinite. 
- Assets produced internally (excluding capitalized development costs) are not capitalized and 

related expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are 
incurred. 

- Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized over the useful economic life. 
- The residual values of intangible assets with finite lives, their useful lives and impairment 

indicators at the end of each financial year are reviewed for impairment if there is an indication 
that the intangible asset may have been impaired. 
�Changes in the expected useful life or expected pattern of future economic benefits embodied in 
the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are 
treated as changes in accounting estimates and adjusted prospectively, if necessary. 

- Amortization expense for intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income under expenses category in line with the function of 
intangible assets. 

- Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when the future economic benefits associated with the 
expenditure are likely to flow to the Group and the expenditure can be measured reliably. 

- Gains or losses arising on derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are included in the statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the asset is disposed of. 
 

3-3-7 Associate companies investment and joint ventures 
Associate companies are those companies over which the group exercises significant influence. 
Significant influence is the Group's ability to participate in the financial and operating decisions of 
the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies. 
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��$�MRLQW�YHQWXUH�LV�D�MRLQW arrangement whereby the Group has joint control of that arrangement and 
has a right to the net assets of the joint arrangement. 
�� -RLQW� FRQWURO� LV� D� MRLQWO\� FRQWUROOHG� FRQWUDFWXDO� DUUDQJHPent that exists when decisions about 
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The considerations in 
determining significant influence and joint control are retaining, directly or indirectly, a percentage of 
the voting power of the investee, representation on the board of directors or similar governance 
bodies of the investee, participation in policy-making, including participation in decisions relating to 
dividends or other distributions, material transactions between the Group and the investee, the 
exchange of administrative personnel or the provision of basic technical information. 
The Group's investment in the associate or joint venture is accounted for using the equity method. 
��$FFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�HTXLW\�PHWKRG��WKH�LQYHVWPHnt in the associate or joint venture is initially recorded 
at cost in the statement of financial position, and this cost is subsequently adjusted to recognize the 
group's share of profits or losses and other comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture 
minus any decrease in the value of the net investment. 
��:KHn the Group's share of losses in the associate or joint venture exceeds its ownership in the 
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term equity interests that substantially form part 
of the Group's net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group ceases to recognize its 
share of the additional losses . Additional losses are recognized and recognized as liabilities only to 
the extent that the Group has legal or contractual obligations or has made payments on behalf of the 
associate or joint venture. 
�� ,I�� LQ� D� VXEVHTXHQW� SHULRG�� WKH� DVVRFLDWH� RU� MRLQt venture records profits, the Group shall resume 
recording its share of such profits only when its share of profits equals its share of unrecognized 
losses. 
The Group's investment in the associate or joint venture is accounted for using the equity method, 
starting from the date on which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. 
��8SRQ�DFTXLULQJ�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ the associate or joint venture, any excess of the investment cost 
over the group's share in the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is 
recorded as goodwill and included in the book value of the investment, and is not depreciated or 
tested in its value independently. 
��$Q\�H[FHVV�RI�Whe Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the 
associate or joint venture over the cost of the investment after reassessment is recognized directly in 
the statement of profit or loss in the year in which the investment is acquired. 
�� 7KH� *URXS� GLVFRQWLQXHV� XVLQJ� WKH� HTXLW\� PHWKRG� Irom the date the investment ceases to be an 
associate or joint venture, or when the investment is designated as held for sale. In this case, the 
investment is recorded at fair value, and any difference between the book value of the associate or 
joint venture and the fair value after it is converted to investment and the disposal proceeds are 
recognized in the income statement. 
��:KHQ� WKH�Jroup reduces its interest in an associate or a joint venture and the group continues to 
apply the equity method, the company must reclassify the gain and loss previously recognized in 
other comprehensive income and related to that decrease in the statement of profit and loss, if this 
classification is for gain and loss. Includes derecognition of related assets or liabilities. 
�� $IWHU� DSSO\LQJ� WKH� HTXLW\� PHWKRG�� WKH� JURXS� GHWHUPLQHV�� RQ� WKH� GDWH� RI� SUHSDULQJ� WKH� ILQDQFLDO�
statements, the extent to which there is objective evidence of a decline in the value of the investment 
in an associate or a joint venture, and in the case of such evidence, the company estimates the 
recoverable amount of the investment value. The recoverable amount of the investment value is the 
fair value of the investment or the cash-generating unit less costs to sell the investment or its value in 
use - whichever is higher. 
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-Unrealized gains or losses resulting from transactions between the group and the associate or joint 
venture are eliminated to the extent of the group's interest in the associate or joint venture. The 
group's share of the results of the associate or joint venture is presented in the income statement after 
operating profits or losses 
The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same financial period as 
the group. Adjustments are made, if necessary, to bring the accounting policie 
 

3-3-8 Biological assets and agricultural production 
Biological assets are shrimp that are still in the growth stage. Biological assets are measured at fair 
value less selling cost when the fair value can be measured clearly and reliably, but when the fair 
value measurement is unreliable, and there are no prices from an active market for the assets In this 
case, the vital assets are measured at cost, and when they reach the stage of their readiness for sale, 
such measurement is the cost on that date when applying International Accounting Standard No. (2) 
³,QYHQWRU\´� 
 Selling costs include incremental selling costs and the estimated costs of bringing them to market but 
not financing costs. Agriculture costs such as water expenses, labor costs and fertilizer costs are 
expensed as incurred when the biological assets are measured at fair value. 
Fruit trees are seed-bearing plants and are therefore displayed and accounted for as property, plant 
and equipment. However, the fruits that grow on those trees are accounted for as vital assets up to the 
date of their harvest. Fruit harvest is carried to stock at fair value less costs to sell at harvest. Changes 
in the fair value of the fruits before harvest are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. 
The fair value of the immature fruits is determined using a discounted cash flow model based on the 
expected yield of the fruits by the cultivated area, and the market price of the ripe fruits after taking 
into account the following: 
 Harvest costs, asset cost contribution to the land and tree ownership to the company and other costs 
not yet incurred to obtain clusters to maturity. But if there are no prices from an active market for the 
fruits and the fair value cannot be determined in a clear and reliable way, then in such a case the 
biological asset must be measured at cost. 
 

3-3-9 Borrowing costs 
- Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 

borrowing of funds. 
- Borrowing costs directly attributable to the establishment of an asset are capitalized using the 

capitalization rate up to the stage in which the work necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for the 
intended purpose is effectively completed and are then charged to profit or loss. In the case of 
specific loans, all such costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an 
asset that require a substantial period of time for its intended preparation or sale, such costs are 
capitalized as part of the cost of the related asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the 
period in which they occur. 
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3-3-10 Lease 

The determination of whether the arrangements are (or its substance) is a lease based on the 
substance of the agreement of the beginning of the contract. An arrangement is assessed to 
determination whether its performance depends on the user of assets or that the arrangements 
transfer the right to use the asset even if the asset is not explicitly identified in the arrangement. 
 

The Group as a lessee 
The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability related to the lease 
contracts which the requirements of IFRS (16) apply where: 

- Each a rental payment is distributed between the liabilities and the finance cost. 
- The finance cost is charged to profit and loss over a lease term where be achieved a static 

periodical commission rate on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 
- The right of use assets was amortized with the cost that involving the following: 
x The amount of initial measurement for lease liabilities. 
x Any lease payments which were paid at or before the commencement date of the contract less any 

received rental incentives. 
x The costs of renewal. (if any) 

- The lease liabilities comprise the following net present values of payments: 
x The fixed payments (including the fixed payments in its substance) less any debit incentives. 
x  The variable lease payments which based on an indicator or rate. (if any) 
x The amounts which expected to be paid pursuant to the guarantees of the residual value. 
x The price of exercising of the option of purchasing if a lessee sure reasonably from exercise that 

option if any. 
x Payments of the fines related to terminate a lease contract, if the lease term reflects reasonably of 

exercising the lessee for that option (if any). 
- The payments of a lease contract are discounted by using an incremental borrowing rate which 

represents the price that would pay by the lessee to borrow the necessary funds to obtain an asset 
in a similar value in a similar economic environment with similar conditions and terms. 

- The payments related to short-term leases and low-value leases are recognised as an expense in 
profit and loss. The short-term leases are the leases that have a lease period 12month or less. 

- Renegotiation on the lease contract's terms is made on an individual basis and contains a large of 
conditions and different terms. The arrangements of the lease contracts do not impose any pledges 
but the right-of-use assets do not use as a guarantee for the purposes of borrowing. 
 

The Group as a lessor 
- The determination of whether the agreements are (or its substance) is a lease based on the 

substance of the agreement of the beginning of the contract. 
- Each lease (if any) are classified as a finance lease or an operating lease, where the regard of a 

lease is a finance lease or an operating lease depends on the substance of a transaction, not on the 
form of the contract. 

- A lease is classified as a finance lease if a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. 

- A lease is classified as an operating lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to the owner ship of an underlying asset. 
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- The lease incentives or any increase in the lease contracts are included as part of the total liability 
from the lease contract and are calculated on a straight line basis over the period of the contract. 
Contingent rentals are included as revenue in the period in which they are calculated. 
 

3-3-11 Impairment of non-financial assets 
x At each reporting date, the Group reviews non-financial assets (other than inventories) to 

determine whether there is any indication or circumstances that indicate an impairment loss or 
reversal of impairment loss. If this indicator exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss or reversal of the impairment loss, if any. 

x When over it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the group 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a 
reasonable and consistent basis for allocation can be determined, the joint assets are allocated to 
individual cash-generating units or otherwise distributed to the smaller group of cash-generating 
units for which a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be determined� 

x The recoverable amount of the asset is the fair value of the asset or cash generating unit less costs 
to sell or value in use - whichever is higher, 

� The recoverable amount of an individual asset is determined unless the asset generates cash flows 
that are substantially independent of the expenditure generated from other assets or groups of 
assets.� 

� When the carrying amount of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
asset is considered impaired and its value is reduced to its recoverable amount� 

� In assessing the value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using the pre-tax discount rate, reflecting current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the specific risks of assets for which future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. 

� When determining the fair value less costs to complete the sale, recent market transactions are 
taken into consideration and, if such transactLRQV� FDQ¶W� EH� LGHQWLILHG�� DQ� DSSURSULDWH� YDOXDWLRQ�
model is used. 

x An impairment loss is recognized directly in profits or losses unless the relevant assets are carried 
at their revaluated amount. The impairment loss is treated in this case as a revaluation decrease. 

x Where the impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had the impairment 
loss been recognized value of assets (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. An impairment loss is 
recognized directly in the profits or losses unless the relevant assets are carried at their revaluated 
amount. The impairment loss is recognized in this case as an increase arising from revaluation. 

x Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets that are not available for use 
after being reviewed for impairment at least annually and whenever there is an indication of 
impairment. 
 

3-3-12 Fair value measurement  
- Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the assumption that the transaction for to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability take place either� 

x Through the principal market of the asset or liability, or� 
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x Through the market most beneficial to the asset or liability in the absence of a principal market. 
- The principal market or market must be the most accessible by the group.�� 
- The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions used by market 

participants when pricing the asset or liability on the assumption that the parties in the market act 
in the best economic interest. 

- The measurement of the fair value of a non-financial asset takes in consideration the ability of the 
parties in the market to provide economic benefits by using the asset to obtain the best benefit 
from it or to sell it to another party in the market for the best benefit. 

- The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate to the circumstances and have sufficient 
data to measure fair value, maximize the use of observable data and reduce the use of non-
observable related data, where: 

x The responsibility to supervise all important fair value measurements is the responsibility of 
management, including the third level of fair values. 

x The management reviews significant non-observable inputs and valuation adjustments 
periodically. 

x The management evaluates the evidence obtained from a third party to support the conclusion that 
these valuations meet the requirements of the IFRS adopted in Saudi Arabia, including the level in 
the hierarchy of fair value for which such assessments should be classified if information is used 
by a third party, such as brokers' prices or pricing services, are used to measure fair values. 

- The Group uses observable market data to the extent possible when measuring the fair value of an 
asset or liability. The fair values are classified at different levels in the fair value hierarchy based 
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows: 

x Level 1 � Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities  
x Level 2�� Inputs other than prices listed in level 1 for identical assets and liabilities that could be 

observed for the assets or liabilities other than direct or indirect ( as derivate of the price of the 
adjustment) 

x Level �: Inputs for assets and liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
input and inactive market)  

- If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability are at different levels of the fair 
value hierarchy, the fair value measurement is fully classified at the same level of the fair value 
hierarchy as the lowest level of inputs is essential for full measurement. 

- Transfers are recognized between the levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period in which the change occurs. 
 

3-3-13 Financial instruments  
- Financial instruments are recognized and measured in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 

(9) "Financial Instruments", which defines and addresses the classification, measurement and de-
recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities and certain contracts for the purchase or sale 
of non-financial items. The details of the relevant accounting policies are set out below. 

- Initial recognition ± financial assets and financial liabilities  
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the entity becomes a party to the contractual of 
the instrument. 
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x Initial measurement 

On initial measurement, except for trade receivables that do not include a material financing 
component, the financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss. The transaction 
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset are recognized in profit or loss. 
If the financial asset is not at fair value through profit or loss, the financial asset is measured at its 
fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Trade receivables that do not have a material financing component or which are less than 12 
months old are measured at the transaction price in accordance with IFRS (15). 

 

x Classification and subsequent measurement 
The subsequent measurement of non-derivative financial assets depends on their classification into 
the following measurement categories based on the business model in which the financial assets 
are managed as well as the contractual terms of cash flows: 
 

A) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 
Financial assets at fair value through statement of profit or loss are measured at the end of each 
reporting period without any transaction costs that the Group may incur when selling or disposing 
of any financial asset in the future. 
All financial assets that are not classified as measured at amortized cost or at fair value through 
other comprehensive income and will  be described below are measured at fair value through 
profit or loss. This includes all other derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group is 
entitled to finalize financial assets that otherwise meet the measurement requirements at amortized 
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income as financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss. 
If the Group does so, it omits the accounting mismatch that may arise in one way or another or 
significantly reduces mismatches. 
 

B) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income: 
They are either (debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income) or (equity 
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income) 
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at the end of each 
reporting period and the transaction costs incurred by the Group are derecognized when the asset 
is disposed of in the future. 
Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if 
the following two conditions are met and are not measured at fair value through profit or loss: 

9 It is maintained within a business model that is verified by collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling financial assets� And 

9 Their contractual periods are established on specific cash flow dates that represent only payments 
of principal and interest on the principal of the amount outstanding. 
Upon derecognition of financial assets, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other 
comprehensive income is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss. However, the fair value 
gains or losses are not reclassified to profit or loss in the case of equity instruments. 
 

C) Financial assets measured at amortized cost: 
The financial asset should be measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method if the 
following conditions are met: 
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1) The financial asset is retained within the business model, which is intended to hold financial assets 
from the collection of contractual cash flows;  and 

2) The contractual terms of the financial asset on specific dates result in cash flows that are principal 
and interest payments on the principal outstanding.     
Financial assets measured at amortized cost include trade and other receivables.  
After initial measurement, these financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest rate method less impairment (if any). Amortized cost is calculated by 
taking into consideration any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the effective interest rate. Effective interest rate amortization is included in 
financing revenue in profit or loss. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. 
 

The method of recognizing and presenting the profits or losses resulting from classifying the 
above categories is as follows: 

 
Measurement class� Recognizing and presenting the profits or losses�

Financial assets at 
amortized cost�

- The following items are included in statement of profit or loss� 
� Interest income using the effective interest rate method. 
� Expected credit losses (or reversal of losses) (impairment and 

reversal) 
� Foreign exchange gains or losses 

- When the financial asset is  derecognized (Derecognition), the 
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. 

Debt instruments at fair 
value through other 
comprehensive income�

- Gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income 
except for the following items which are recognized in profit or 
loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at 
amortized cost� 
� Interest income using the effective interest method� 
� Expected credit losses (or reversal of losses). (Impairment and 

reversal) 
� Foreign exchange gains or losses 

- When the financial asset is de-recognized (Derecognition),  the 
cumulative gain or loss in the other comprehensive income is 
reclassified to profit or loss 

Investment in equity 
instruments at fair value 
through other 
comprehensive income�

- Gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income 
- Dividends from these investments must be recognized as income in 

profit or loss unless they clearly represent the payment of part of 
the cost of the investment� 

- The amounts recognized in other comprehensive income are not 
reclassified to profit or loss under any circumstances� 

Investment at fair value 
through profit or loss�

- Gains or losses arising either from subsequent measurement or 
from de-recognition are recognized in profit or loss� 
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x Reclassification 
When _and only when _ an entity changes its business model in the managing of financial 
assets, it must reclassify all its affected financial assets in accordance with the above 
classification requirements. 

x Cancellation of recognition of financial assets 
The de-recognition of a financial asset (or, as appropriate, a part of a financial asset or a part of 
a group of similar financial assets) (which mean its disposal from the financial position 
statement) when the cash flow rights commented of the asset is done or when the financial asset 
is transfer the financial assets or all its risks and benefits to another party. The difference in 
carrying amount is recognized in the profit or loss. 
 

x Impairment of financial assets 
At each reporting date, the Group assesses the probability of objective evidence that the 
financial asset measured at cost or amortized cost may be impaired. Impairment arises when 
one or more events occur, if the initial recognition of an asset has an impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of a financial asset or a group of financial assets that can be reliably 
measured. 
 

IFRS (9) requires the Group to apply a model to measure expected credit losses in respect of 
impairment of financial assets. Credit event occurrence is not necessary to include credit losses. 
Instead, using the expected credit loss model, the entity calculates the expected credit losses and 
changes as of each reporting date. 
The expected credit loss should be measured and made a provision to it either in the amount 
equivalent to: 
(a) 12 months of expected losses or  
(b) Long term expected losses. 

� If the credit risk of the financial instrument is not substantially increased from the beginning, 
then a provision equal to the expected loss of 12 months is created. 

� In other cases, provision should be made for long-term credit losses. 
For trade receivables and other receivables, the Group has applied the simplified method in 
accordance with the Standard and calculates credit losses according to credit loss forecasts over 
the life of the financial assets where: 

� The Group has established a matrix of provisions based on the Group's past experience with 
respect to credit losses, and adjusted for future factors relating to debtors and the economic 
environment. 

� Impairment losses relating to trade receivables are presented separately in profit or loss. 
 

Except for investments in debt instruments measured through other comprehensive income, the 
book value of the asset is reduced through the use of the provision account and the amount of 
the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be depreciated using the 
interest rate used to discount future cash flows to measure impairment loss. Loans are written 
off with the loan-related provision when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all 
guarantees are realized or transferred to the Group. 
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� In respect of investments in debt instruments measured through other comprehensive income, 
the provision for the loss of other comprehensive income accumulated in the investment 
revaluation reserve is recognized and does not reduce the book value of the financial asset in the 
statement of financial position. 

� In any case, if in a subsequent year, the amount of the impairment loss increased or decreased 
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recorded, the previously recognized 
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the provision account. If a subsequent 
write-down is reversed, the reversal is recognized in profit or loss. 
 

Financial liabilities 
The Group's financial liabilities include accounts payables and accruals amount. 
 

x Initial measurement 
Financial liabilities are initially recognized as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income and as loans, advances and payables as appropriate. 
All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and in the case of long-term loans, 
advances and accounts payable, net of direct costs related to the transaction. (I.e. except for 
financial liabilities at fair value where transaction costs directly related to the acquisition of 
financial liabilities are recognized directly in profit or loss). 
 

x Classification and subsequent measurement 
A) At amortized cost 

The entity must classify all financial liabilities at amortized cost and subsequently measured, 
except for: 

1) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 
2) Financial liabilities that arise when a financial asset that is unqualified for 

 de�recognition is derecognized or when the method of continuing involvement is applied (the 
continuing correlation method). 

3) Financial guarantee contracts. 
4) Obligations or commitments to provide a loan at an interest rate lower than the market price and 

not measured at fair value through profit or loss. 
5) The potential price (consideration) recognized by the acquirer in a business combination that is 

in accordance with IFRS (3). This potential price is subsequently measured at fair value with 
changes recognized in profit or loss. 
 

All financial liabilities of the Group are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income when the liability is derecognized through the amortization of the 
effective interest rate. 
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into consideration any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate method. 
Effective interest rate amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. 
Gains or losses on financial liabilities measured at fair value (which are not part of the overall 
hedging relationship) are recognized in profit or loss. Except for gains or losses on certain 
financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or loss when the Group is 
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required to assess the effects of changes in credit risk associated with liabilities in other 
comprehensive income. 
 

B) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities included in this category include: 
1. Liabilities held for trading. 
2. Liabilities derivatives not designated as hedging instruments. 
3. Liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. 
After initial recognition, the Group measures financial liabilities at fair value and recognizes 
changes in profit or loss. 
Usually Gains and losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value are recognized in profit 
or loss as follows: 
 

1.  The amount of the change in the fair value of a financial liability that is attributable to changes in 
credit risk is recognized in other comprehensive income. 

2.  The residual value of the change in the fair value of the financial liability is recognized in profit 
or loss. 
 

C) Financial liabilities other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate. 

x Reclassification 
The Group cannot reclassify any financial liability. 

x Derecognition of financial liabilities 
A financial liability is de-recognized when it is fulfill, cancelled or terminated. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms or when the terms of an existing obligation are substantially modified, such a replacement 
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original financial liability while recognizing 
the new obligation. The difference between the relevant book values is recognized in profit or 
loss. 

x Set-off of financial instruments (set-off between financial assets and liabilities). 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and recorded net in the statement of financial 
position only when the following conditions are met: 

1- The Group has a statutory legal right to set-off the amounts recognized in assets and liabilities. 
2- The intention of the Group to settle on a net basis or to recognize the asset and settle the 

obligation simultaneously.    
 

3-3-14 Revenues recognition  
- Revenues arising from contracts are recognized and measured in accordance with the 

requirements of IFRS (15), unless they are within the scope of other standards. 
- Revenue is measured on the basis of the compensation specified in the contract with the 

customer, with the exception of amounts collected on behalf of other parties. The Group 
recognizes revenue when transferring control over the products or services provided to the 
customer. 

- IFRS 15 is applied either with full retrospective or amended application where: 
- Where the Group records revenue from contracts with clients based on the following five steps: 
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a) Determining the contract with the client: A contract is an agreement between two or more 
parties that results in mandatory rights and obligations and clarifies the criteria that must be met 
for each contract. 

b) Defining performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise to the 
customer according to the contract in order to transport goods or provide services to the 
customer. 

c) Determining the transaction price: The transaction price is the price expected from the Group in 
exchange for the transfer of goods or services agreed upon with the customer, excluding the 
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

d) Distributing the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract 
that contains more than one performance obligation, the Group distributes the transaction price 
to each performance obligation by an estimated amount of the price expected to be collected 
from the goods or services in exchange for the performance of the performance obligation. 

e) Revenue is recognized when (or when) the Group fulfills the performance obligation. 
- The Group fulfills the performance obligation and recognizes revenue over the term of the contract 

if it fulfills any of the following requirements: 
a) The client obtains the benefits resulting from the performance of the Group and the 

consumption of those benefits at the same time, or 
b) The Group's performance leads to the creation or improvement of an asset that is under the 

customer's control at the time of improvement or creation, or 
c) The Group's performance of the obligation is not originally for other uses of the Group, and the 

Group has the right to collect the amount for the completed performance to date that is 
enforceable. 

- For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is 
recognized at the time the performance obligation is satisfied. 

- When the Group fulfills a performance obligation by providing the promised goods or services, 
then the Group creates an asset based on the contract in exchange for the price it received as a 
result of the performance. If the amount of the billed price to the customer exceeds the amount 
of the listed revenues, this increases the commitment of the contract. 

- Revenue is measured at the fair value of the price received or receivable, taking into account the 
contractual payment terms specified. 

- Revenue is included in profit or loss to the extent of the expected flow of economic benefits to 
the Group, with revenues and costs - where applicable - being able to be measured reliably. 

- The Group's revenue is represented in: 
x Revenue from Products Sales: 
� Revenue resulting from the sale of goods is recognized and an invoice is issued when all of the 

following conditions are met: 
9 Transferring the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods to the buyer. 
9 The Group does not retain the right to continuous administrative intervention to the degree that 

is usually associated with ownership nor with actual control over the sold goods. 
9 The amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 
9 It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group. 
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9 The costs incurred or to be borne by the Group in connection with the transaction can be 
measured in a reliable manner. 

� The Group does not have any loyalty programs under which points are awarded to customers, 
and therefore no deferred revenue is recognized for the items sold. 
 

� Rental Income 
Revenue is recognized in accordance with the above and rental income from operating leases is 
recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the related lease. The initial direct costs or 
incentives incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added and considered as 
an integral part of the carrying amount of the leased contract and included on a straight line 
basis over the term of the lease. 
 

� Elements of financing 
The Group does not currently have or expects at the present time any contracts with clients for 
routine sales or products where the period between transferring the promised products or 
services to the customer and paying the customer exceeds one year. As a result, the Group is not 
currently making an adjustment to any transaction rates regarding the time value of money. 
However, if any such situation is identified, the relevant amounts are remeasured in order to 
adjust the time value of the funds. 
 

� Warranty obligations 
The Group provides guarantees regarding the sold goods when certain terms and conditions are 
applied, and accordingly the Group is subject to the requirements of the International Financial 
Reporting Standard No. 15 with regard to deferring the recognition of revenues and recording 
contract obligations. 
 

3-3-15 Costs Of Revenue 
- All expenditures are recognized on an accrual basis, and operating costs are recognized on 
the basis of historical cost. Production costs and direct manufacturing expenses are classified as 
cost of sales. This includes raw materials, direct labor and other related indirect costs. Other 
costs such as selling costs are recorded as selling and distribution expenses, while all other 
remaining expenses are shown as general and administrative expenses. 
 
 

3-3-16 Expenses 
- Selling and marketing expenses and general and administrative expenses include direct and 

indirect costs that are not specifically considered part of the cost of revenues��� 
- Selling and marketing expenses in those expenses arising from the Group's underlying sales and 

marketing functions��� 
- All expenses except for financial charges, amortization, depreciation and impairment losses are 

classified as general and administrative expenses��� 
- Other joint expenses are allocated between the cost of revenue, selling and marketing costs and 

general and administrative expenses on a consistent basis where necessary� 
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3-3-17 Income Tax and Zakat 
 Zakat  

- Zakat is calculated in accordance with zakat regulations issued by the General Authority for 
Zakat and Income in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia ("the Authority" ��  

- Zakat is charged to the profit or loss. 
- Any additional obligations and settlement of adjustments resulting from the Zakat, if any, that 

may become due upon completion of the assessment are recorded in the same fiscal year in 
which the zakat assessment is recognized� 
 

 
Withholding tax 

- The Group deducts taxes on certain transactions with non-resident entities in Saudi Arabia as 
required in accordance with the applicable tax regulations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The 
withholding tax relating to foreign payments is recognized as a liability 
� 
Transaction tax 

1- Income, expenses and assets are recognized net of transaction tax (including VAT), except 
for: 

x Where the transaction tax incurred in the purchase of an asset or service is not recoverable from 
the tax authority, in which case the transaction tax is recognized as part of the cost of the asset 
or as part of the expense, where applicableˬ  

x Accounts receivable and payables that have been included with the transaction tax amount�  
2- The net amount of the transaction tax recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is 

included as part of the receivables or payables in the statement of financial position. 
 

3-3-18 Foreign currency transactions and balances 
- Foreign currency transactions are translated into Saudi Riyals (functional currency) at the rates 

of exchange ruling at the date of the financial statements. Gains and losses arising from changes 
in exchange rates are recognized in profit or loss� 

- Non-monetary items that are measured at the historical cost of a foreign currency are 
retranslated using the exchange rates at the date of the initial transactions and are not 
subsequently adjusted. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rates at the date that the fair value was determined. The gain 
or loss arising on the translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is accounted for 
in accordance with the recognition of profit or loss from changes in the fair value of the related 
item� 
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3-3-19 Provisions  
A. Provisions are recognized when the Group has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from 

a past event and there is a possibility that the Group will be required to settle this obligation 
through cash flows from outside the Group that reflect economic benefits and a significant 
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where the Group expects to repay some 
or all of the provision - for example - under an insurance contract, the payment is recognized as 
an independent asset but only when the payment is actually confirmed. The expense for the 
provision is presented in to profit or loss after any payment� 

B. If the effect of the time value of money is significant, the provisions  is determined by 
discounting the expected future cash flows at the current discount rate before the tax that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks related to the 
obligation. When the discount is used, the excess of the provision is recognized as a result of 
the passage of time as the cost of financing in the profit or loss� 

C. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
If a flow of required external resources with economic benefits to settle the obligation is no 
longer probable, the provision is reversed� 

D. Cessation of operations costs (assets related to the removal of assets) 
A provision to suspend operations is recognized when the Group is responsible for the 
restoration or rehabilitation of the land. The degree of suspension of the required operations and 
related costs depends on the requirements of current laws and regulations. 
Costs included and included in the provision include all expected cessation liabilities over the 
life of the assets. The provision for suspending operations is discounted to its present value and 
capitalized as part of the assets under property, plant and equipment and is amortized over the 
life of the asset. 
Adjustments to the estimated amount and time of cash flows to discontinue operations are 
normal in light of the significant judgments and estimates involved. These adjustments are 
recorded as an increase in liabilities offset by an increase in the related assets. Factors affecting 
these adjustments include: 

� Technology development. 
� Regulatory requirements and environmental management strategies. 
� Changes in the estimated threshold and expected costs of activities, including the effects of 

inflation. 
� Changes in economic sustainability. 

 
3-3-20 Employee benefits 

A. Defined Benefit Programs� 
x The Group provides a defined benefit plan to its employees in accordance with the Saudi Labor 

Law. The Group's net liability in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating and 
deducting the amount of future benefits acquired by the employee in the current and prior 
periods. The defined benefit obligations are calculated annually by a qualified actuary by the 
projected unit credit method, which takes into account the provisions of the Saudi Labor Law 
and Group policy. 
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x The defined benefit obligation is periodically re-measured by independent actuaries using the 
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined 
by deducting estimated future cash outflows and due to the lack of a deep market for 
government bonds / skunk or corporate bonds / skunk in Saudi Arabia, the discount rate is 
determined by reference to the Dow Jones Skunk Dividend. The net commission cost is 
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of defined benefit obligation and the 
fair value of the program assets. 

x The defined benefit obligation costs are calculated using actuarially defined retirement costs at 
the end of the previous year, adjusted for significant market fluctuations and any significant 
one-time events such as program adjustment, manpower reduction and reimbursement. In the 
absence of such significant market fluctuations and one-time events, the actuarial liability is 
extended based on the assumptions at the beginning of the year. If there are significant changes 
in assumptions or arrangements during the initial period, they are considered for re-
measurement of these liabilities and related costs. 

x Re-measurement of the net liability of defined benefit schemes consisting of actuarial gains and 
losses is recognized directly in other comprehensive income. The Group calculates net interest 
by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined benefit obligation or asset. Net 
interest expense and other related expenses are recognized in the profit or loss programs as 
defined in the profit or loss. 

x When the benefits of a program change or when the duration of the program is reduced, the 
resulting change in benefit relating to the past service, profit or loss from the immediate 
reduction in profit or loss is recognized. 
 

B. Short-term employee benefits� 
A liability is recognized for benefits to employees relating to wages and salaries including non-
monetary benefits, annual leave, sick leave and travel tickets during the period in which the 
service is provided, as well as the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid for 
that service on the basis that the related service may Performed. Recognized liabilities relating 
to short-term employee benefits are measured at the amount that is not deductible and is 
expected to be paid for the service rendered� 
 

C. Employee benefits�after end of service 
The Group pays retirement contributions to its Saudi employees to the Social Insurance 
Institution and represents a specific contribution plan and the payments are considered as 
expenses when incurred. 
 

3-3-21 Liabilities and  contingent assets 
A. Contingent liabilities are obligations that are likely to arise from past events and are confirmed 

to exist only through the occurrence or absence of one or more uncertain future events that are 
not within the overall control of the Group. or an existing obligation that is not proved because 
it is unlikely that there will be a need for the flow of resources to settle the obligation. In the 
event that the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably enough, the Group does not 
demonstrate the contingent liabilities but discloses them in the financial statements� 

B. The potential assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed when 
economic benefits are probable� 
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3-3-22 Earnings per Share 
- Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income attributable to the Group's 

shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. 
- Reduced earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the group's 

shareholders (after adjusting for interest on convertible preference shares) by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares that will be issued when converting all potential reduced ordinary 
shares into shares normal. 

- Since the Group does not have any convertible shares, the basic earnings per share equals the 
reduced earnings per share. 
 

3-3-23 Cash dividends of the Group's Shareholders 
- The Company recognizes the obligations related to the payment of cash dividends to the 

Company's shareholders when the distribution is approved  
- In accordance with the Companies Law in Saudi Arabia, dividends are approved by the 

shareholders. 
- Initial dividends, if any, are recorded upon approval by the Board of Directors. The amount of 

the consideration is recognized directly in equity. 
 

3-3-24 Prepaid expenses 
Prepaid long-term expenses (if any) are recognized at cost less any accumulated impairment 
losses. 
 

3-3-25 Segments Reports 
- The business segment is a group of assets, operations, or facilities: 
1) Conducts its business in commercial activities through which it is possible to generate revenues 

and incur expenses including revenues and expenses related to transactions with other 
components of the Group; 

2) The results of its operations are analyzed on an ongoing basis by the Chief Operating Officer in 
order to make decisions related to resource allocation and performance evaluation; and  

3) On which accurate information is available separately. 
The geographical segment provides products or services within a specific economic environment 
that is exposed to risks and returns that differ from operating sectors in other economic 
environments. 
 
3-3-26 Government grants 
Government grants are recognized at fair value in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when 
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and that the group has complied with 
all the terms of that grant. Grants received when the group has not yet complied with all the 
conditions attached are recognized as liabilities and such grants are recognized in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss when all conditions of that grant are fulfilled. 
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4- SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS� 
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities disclosed and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the reporting date. Uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates may result in results that may require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the 
assets or liabilities that will be affected in future periods� 
These estimates and assumptions are based on experience and other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances and are used to judge the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities that are difficult to obtain from other sources. Core estimates and assumptions are 
reviewed on an on-going basis. An audit of the accounting estimates is recorded in the period in 
which the estimates are revised or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revised 
estimates affect current and future periods� 
Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions have been made which have a 
material impact on the financial statements as following: 
 
4-1 Judgments 
Compliance with performance obligations 

The group must assess each of its contracts with customers to determine whether performance 
obligations have been met over time or at a specific time in order to determine the appropriate method 
of income recognition. The group assessed this based on the sales and purchase agreements it had 
entered into with the customers and the provisions of the relevant laws and regulations . 

 
Determine transaction prices 

The group shall determine transaction prices in respect of each of its contracts with customers. In 
making such judgment, the group assesses the impact of any variable price in the contract as a result of 
discounts or fines, the presence of any material element of the contract and any non-monetary price in 
the contract. 
 
Classification of investment properties 
The group determines whether a property qualifies as investment property under IAS 40, 
investment property. In making such a judgment, the group considers whether the property 
generates substantial cash flows that are independent of other assets held by the group. 
 
Operating lease commitments - the group as lessor 
The Group enters into commercial and retail leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group 
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it 
retains all the risks and benefits of ownership of these properties and accordingly accounts for them 
as operating leases. 
Corona pandemic (Covid-19) 

- The Group has reviewed the main sources of uncertainty estimates that have been disclosed in the 
latest financial statements regarding the Corona pandemic (Covid-19). Management believes that, 
other than the expected credit losses on a financial assets, the impairment loss on a non-financial asset 
and all other sources of uncertainty remain similar to those disclosed in the annual financial 
statements. Management will continue to monitor the situation and any required changes will be 
reflected in the future reporting year - note (3�). 
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4-2 Assumptions and estimates  
Defined Benefit Programs� 

- The cost of the defined benefit programs and the present value of the obligation are determined 
using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation includes many different assumptions that differ 
from actual developments in the future. This includes the determination of discount rates, future 
salary increases, mortality rates and the rate of movement of staff. As a result of the complexity and 
long-term nature of the valuation process, the commitment of specific benefits is highly sensitive to 
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are examined at the reporting date. The most 
commonly used measurement criteria are the discount rate and the future salary increase.  
 

When determining the appropriate discount rate, management relies on market yield on high quality 
corporate bonds. Future salary increases depend on future inflation rates, seniority, promotion, 
supply and demand in the employment market. The mortality rate is based on the mortality tables 
available for specific countries. The extrapolation of mortality tables may change over time in 
response to population changes.  
 
Expected credit losses 
Expected credit losses are measured as financial assets measured at amortized cost and requires the 
use of complex models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit 
behavior. 
There are a number of important provisions required in the application of accounting standards 

1- Define criteria for substantial increase in credit risk 
2- Selecting appropriate formats and assumptions to measure expected credit losses 
3- Determine the number and relative weight of future assumptions for each type of product and 

market 
4- Create a pool of potential financial assets to measure air credit losses. 

The Group recognizes a provision for expected credit losses on financial instruments that are 
measured at amortized cost. 
The Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to the expected credit losses over the 
useful life of the financial instrument, except for: 
- The following financial instruments for which the provision for expected credit losses is measured 
over a period of 12 months: 
- Financial assets with low credit risk at the reporting date and financial instruments where credit 
risk has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. 

 
Productive useful life of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets 
The Group determines the estimated useful lives of property, equipment and investment properties 
for depreciation. This estimate is determined after taking into account the expected period of use of 
the asset and the natural damage. The management examines the estimated useful lives and the 
method of depreciation periodically to ensure that the method and duration of depreciation are 
consistent with the expected model of the economic benefits of these assets�and changes in 
depreciation expense are adjusted in current and future periods, if any, 
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Impairment of non-financial assets. 
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there are indications of impairment of the non-
financial assets at each reporting date. Non-financial assets are selected to determine impairment in 
the event of indications that the carrying amounts cannot be recovered��� 
When the value in use is calculated, the management estimates the future cash flows of the asset or 
unit of cash and selects the appropriate discount rate to calculate the present value of these cash 
flows� 

Going concern� 
The management of the Group has assessed its ability to continue on the basis of the going concern 
and has concluded that it has the resources to continue its activity in the foreseeable future. In 
addition, management is not aware of any material uncertainty that may cast doubt on the Group's 
ability to continue in accordance with the going concern. Consequently, the financial statements 
have been prepared on the basis of the going concern� 

 
 

5- BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 
- During the year 2020, the group acquired 80% of the shares of the Fish Day Company for Fish 
Sale, a Saudi limited liability company. The Fish Day Company for Fish Sale is engaged in the 
wholesale sale of fish and aquatic organisms, the retail sale of fish and other seafood and its 
products, and retail through It was agreed that the consideration for acquiring equity stakes would 
be 300,000 Saudi riyals in cash, and there were no significant tangible assets and liabilities on the 
date of acquisition. and management has undertaken the process of allocating the purchase price 
and has resulted in intangible assets identifiable separately amounting to 360,000 Saudi riyals, The 
company's share in the assets acquired is identical to the purchase consideration paid for the 
acquisition of the company. 
 
- During the year 2020, the group acquired 65% of the shares of Mango Jazan Trading Company, a 
Saudi company with limited liability to expand its customer base through the electronic platform. 
And significant tangible liabilities on the date of acquisition, and management has undertaken the 
process of allocating the purchase price and has resulted in intangible assets identifiable separately 
DPRXQWLQJ� WR� ����PLOOLRQ� 6DXGL� UL\DOV�� WKH� FRPSDQ\¶V� VKDUH� LQ� WKH� DVVHWV� DFTXLUHG�PDWFKHV� WKH�
purchase consideration paid to acquire the company. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Tools & Furniture,Fixtures Projects in

Equipment Office Equipments
 & decorations

Wells Computers Fruitful trees progress**

Balance as at 1/1/2021 17 074 855 213 230 790 109 406 349 10 246 103 5 006 509  977 071 2 944 046 23 486 155 2 780 357 385 152 235

Additions during the year -                         362 980 8 628 772 1 058 155  79 981 -                    97 261 -                        8 808 617 19 035 766

Disposals during the year -                        -                           -                           (1 053 565) -                             -                   -                      -                        (1 693 117) (2 746 682)

Cost as ot 31/12/2021 17 074 855 213 593 770 118 035 121 10 250 693 5 086 490  977 071 3 041 307 23 486 155 9 895 857 401 441 319

Balance as at 1/1/2021 -                        77 004 068 69 748 561 7 723 986 4 162 849  757 359 2 249 213 6 572 133 -                                  168 218 169

Year's depreciation -                        2 749 035 4 252 397  564 990  203 788  28 147  111 077  423 384 -                                  8 332 818

Accumulated of disposals -                        -                           -                           (1 026 282) -                             -                   -                      -                        -                                  (1 026 282)

Accumulated depreciation as at  31/12/2021 -                        79 753 103 74 000 958 7 262 694 4 366 637  785 506 2 360 290 6 995 517 -                                  175 524 705

Net book value as at 31/12/2021 17 074 855 133 840 667 44 034 163 2 987 999  719 853  191 565  681 017 16 490 638 9 895 857 225 916 614

Net book value as at 31/12/2020 17 074 855 136 226 722 39 657 788 2 522 117  843 660  219 712  694 833 16 914 022 2 780 357 216 934 066

** Projects in progress represented in :

31/10/2021 31/12/2020
Water Factory project (Note31) -                        1 693 116
Shrimp Pond Breeding Project 9 895 857 1 087 241

9 895 857 2 780 357

Depreciations have been distributed as follow: 31/10/2021 31/12/2020
Cost of revenues 7 614 730 7 475 705
Selling and distribution expenses  499 886  469 043
General and administrative expenses  218 202  26 070

8 332 818 7 970 818

*lands item includes the value of lands that have been marginalized on their title deeds by mortgage for the Agricultural Development Fund due to the loan granted to the company (note 22) , the cost of these lands as on December 31, 2021G SAR 17,074,855 (December 31, 2020G SAR 17,074,855).

TotalVehicles

6-Property, plant and equipment, net 

Description Lands* Buildings
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Tools & Furniture,Fixtures Projects in

Equipment Office Equipments
 & decorations

Wells Computers Fruitful trees progress**

Cost as of 01/01/2020 17 074 855 207 914 594 106 927 463 9 784 503 4 752 825  977 071 2 659 506 23 486 155 1 693 116 375 270 088

Additions during the year -                          180 394 2 478 886  461 600  253 684 -                    284 540 -                         1 087 241 4 746 345

�Transfered from Investment properties -                         5 135 802 -                            -                         -                            -                   -                      -                         -                                   5 135 802

Cost as ot 31/12/2020 17 074 855 213 230 790 109 406 349 10 246 103 5 006 509  977 071 2 944 046 23 486 155 2 780 357 385 152 235

Balance as at 1/1/2020 -                         74 431 445 65 620 050 7 209 963 3 966 330  728 914 2 141 901 6 148 748 -                                   160 247 351

Year's depreciation -                         2 572 623 4 128 511  514 023  196 519  28 445  107 312  423 385 -                                   7 970 818

Accumulated depreciation as at  
31/12/2020

-                         77 004 068 69 748 561 7 723 986 4 162 849  757 359 2 249 213 6 572 133 -                                   168 218 169

Net book value as at 31/12/2020 17 074 855 136 226 722 39 657 788 2 522 117  843 660  219 712  694 833 16 914 022 2 780 357 216 934 066

Net book value as at 31/12/2019 17 074 855 133 483 149 41 307 413 2 574 540  786 495  248 157  517 605 17 337 407 1 693 116 215 022 737

31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Water Factory project 1 693 116 1 693 116

Shrimp Pond Breeding Project 1 087 241 -                            

2 780 357 1 693 116

Depreciations have been distributed as follow: 31/12/2020 31/12/2019

Cost of revenues� 7 475 705 7 451 010
Selling and distribution expenses  469 043  408 869
General and administrative expenses  26 070  138 396

7 970 818 7 998 275

*lands item includes the value of lands that have been marginalized on their title deeds by mortgage for the Agricultural Development Fund due to the loan granted to the company (note 22) , the cost of these lands as on December 31, 2020G SAR 17,074,855 (December 31, 2019G SAR 17,074,855).

** The projects under progress are represented in projects that have been established and are still not ready for the purpose prepared for it, and they are as follows:-

6/2-Property, plant and equipment, net 

Description Lands * Buildings TotalVehicles
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Projects in
progress***

Balance as at 1/1/2021 26 515 841 224 020 585 15 249 904 265 786 330
Additions -                        -                              230 979  230 979
Cost as at 31/12/2021 26 515 841 224 020 585 15 480 883 266 017 309

Accumulated Depreciation as at 1/1/2021 -                        33 251 110 -                                         33 251 110
Year's depreciation -                        3 162 021 -                                         3 162 021
Accumulated depreciation as at  31/12/2021 -                        36 413 131   0 36 413 131

Net book value as at 31/12/2021 26 515 841 187 607 454 15 480 883 229 604 178
Net book value as at 31/12/2020 26 515 841 190 769 475 15 249 904 232 535 220

The value of investment properties prepared for rent 200 635 884 Saudi riyals

The value of the investment properties held for capital development 13 487 411 Saudi riyals

7/1-INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

*** The projects under progress as on December 31, 2021 represent the infrastructure on the land of the model plan, where the balance amounted to 15,480,883 Saudi 
riyals (balance on December 31, 2020G 15 249 904 riyals)

The company evaluated investment properties, except for projects under progress, at fair value through an independent valuation expert accredited by the Saudi 
Residents Authority (Taqeem), which is Mumtalakat Real Estate Valuation Group, holder of license number 1210000305. The fair value of investment properties as of 
December 31, 2021G amounted to SAR 294,574 900 (December 31, 2020G amount of SAR 300 050 000)

* lands item includes the value of land that have been marginalized on their title deeds by mortgage for the Agricultural Development Fund due to the loan granted to 
the company (note 22) , the cost of this lands as on December 31, 2021G SAR 800,000 (December 31, 2020G SAR 800,000).

*Buildings item includes the value of lands that have been marginalized on their title deeds by mortgage for the Al-Rajhi Bank due to the loan granted to the company 
(note 22) , the cost of these buildings as on December 31, 2021G SAR 160,252,342 (December 31, 2020G SAR 162,931,112).

Total
Description

Lands * Buildings **
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Projects in
progress***

Balance as at 1/1/2020 26 515 841 222 440 216 20 385 706 269 341 763
Additions -                        1 580 370 -                                         1 580 370
Cost as at 31/12/2020 -                        -                             (5 135 802) (5 135 802)
Cost as at 31/12/2020 26 515 841 224 020 586 15 249 904 265 786 331

Accumulated Depreciation as at 1/1/2020 -                        30 109 558 -                                         30 109 558
Year's depreciation -                        3 141 553 -                                         3 141 553
Accumulated depreciation as at  31/12/2020 -                        33 251 111   0 33 251 111

Net book value as at 31/12/2020 26 515 841 190 769 475 15 249 904 232 535 220
Net book value as at 31/12/2019 26 515 841 192 330 658 20 385 706 239 232 205

7/2-INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Description Lands * Buildings ** Total

*** The projects under progress as on December 31, 2020 represent the infrastructure on the land of the model plan, where the balance amounted to 15,249,904 
Saudi riyals (balance on December 31, 2019G 20 385 706 riyals)

* lands item includes the value of land that have been marginalized on their title deeds by mortgage for the Agricultural Development Fund due to the loan granted 
to the company (note 22) , the cost of this lands as on December 31, 2020G SAR 800,000 (December 31, 2019G SAR 800,000).

*Buildings item includes the value of lands that have been marginalized on their title deeds by mortgage for the Al-Rajhi Bank due to the loan granted to the 
company (note 22) , the cost of these buildings as on December 31, 2020G SAR 160,931,112 (December 31, 2019G SAR 165,025,460).
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8-Intangaible assets, net 

Description
Cost as at 

01/01/2021 2 089 934 -                   3 245 269  5 000 5 340 203

Additions during the year  371 076  425 000 -                  -                    796 076

As at 31/12/2021 2 461 010  425 000 3 245 269  5 000 6 136 279

Accumulated depreciation

as at 01/01/2021  52 248
-                   

 897 730   500  950 478

Amortization  212 494  47 416 1 076 668   450 1 337 028

As at 31/12/2021  264 742  47 416 1 974 398   950 2 287 506

Net book value

As at 31/12/2021 2 196 268  377 584 1 270 871  4 050 3 848 773

As at 31/12/2020 2 037 686                       -   2 347 539  4 500 4 389 725

TotalProgrammes Trade markFish Day 
application

Mango jazan  
application
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9-Right-of-use assets (Net) & Lease Liabilities

Right-of-use asset  (Net)

Description

Cost

Additions during the year  422 190  422 190

As at 31/12/2021  422 190  422 190

Accumult

Depreciation for the period  84 438  84 438

As at 31/12/2021  84 438  84 438

Net book value

As at 31/12/2021  337 752  337 752
-             

The non-current portion of Lease liabilites  269 073   0

The current portion of Lease liabilities  78 969   0
 348 042

The Lease liabilities at the end of the year as follow:-

The total interest expense on lease liabilities recognized during the 
financial year ending on December 31, 2021G is 25,852 Saudi riyals.

Right of use 
assets Total

The group rents an lap in Riyadh. The lease contracts expire on 12/7/1447H corresponding to 01/01/2026G. These contracts 
are subject to renewal with the approval of both parties.
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10- INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES UNCONCILIDATED  
Investments in subsidiary companies consist of the following: 

Company  Legal entity  Country  Ownership 
percentage  

31 
December 

2021 
 

SAR 

 
31 

December 
2020 
SAR 

Fish Day Company 
for Selling Fish *  

Limited liability 
company  

Saudi 
Arabia  ���   -  300,000 

        -  300,000 
 
* Fish Day Company has not been consilidated for the comparative year, as the company was acquired 
during the year 2020G, DQG� DFFRUGLQJ� WR� WKH� FRPSDQ\¶V� DUWLFOH� RI� association, the company¶V� ILUVW�
financial statements are prepared as on December 31, 2021G. 

 
 
11- INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES, NET 

Investments in associate companies consist of the following: 

Company  Country  Ownership 
percentage  

31 December 
2021 

 
SAR 

 
31 December 

2020 
SAR 

Tabuk Fish Company *  Saudi Arabia  ���   ����������   19,154,139 
Jannat Agricultural 
Investment Company **  Saudi Arabia  �����   �  - 
Rakhaa Company for 
Agricultural Investment 
and Development **  

Arab Republic Of 
Egypt  �����   �  - 

      ����������   19,154,139 
 
- The group assesses and records its share in the results of the associate company (Tabuk Fish) based on 

the internaly financial statements  prapered by the managment of companies due to the audited financial 
statements  were not issued. 

 * Tabuk Fish Company is engaged in the cultivation of fish and other aquatic organisms, fishing, and 
gathering of fish and marine organisms, marketing of marine products, the manufacture of marine 
products, the manufacture of fish containers from polystyrene, plastic, etc., the manufacture of fish feed 
and all industries related to the company's activity, and wholesale and retail trade in the equipment and 
supplies of fish projects and in foodstuffs and agencies Commercial establishments, restaurants and 
shops for selling fish are registered in the Commercial Registry of Riyadh City with the number 
1010215142. 
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The movement on the investments in Tabuk Fish Company is as follows: 

  

31 December 2021 
 

SAR 
 31 December 2020 

SAR 

Balance at the beginning of the year  21 125 884  20 105 626 
Group's share in the profit of the associate  ����������   987 579 
Group's share in the items of other comprehensive 
income of the associate  �������   32 679 

  22 419 652  21 125 884 

Impairment of the investment in the associate  �1 971 745��  �1 971 745�� 
Balance at the end of the year  ����������   19 154 139 

 
 

** The activity of Jannat Agricultural Investment Company is represented in establishing agricultural 
projects, livestock, and poultry production, registered in the commercial register in Riyadh City No. 
1010241588. The partners decided to liquidate the company because of the accumulated losses 
exceeding more than half of its capital, and Accordingly, the Jazan Energy and Development Company 
decided to close the entire value of the investment in the financial statements during 2018 Whereas, 
Jannat Agricultural Investment Company owns an investment of 77.73% of the capital of Rakhaa 
Agricultural Investment Company, a company based in the Arab Republic of Egypt that produces 
agricultural crops, and due to the stumbling block of Jannat Company and it is being under liquidation, 
on 2 January  2020, the ownership of 17,288 shares of the shares were transferred. Rakhaa Company 
for Agricultural Investment and Development to the Jazan Energy and Development Company 
(JAZADCO). The deficit of shareholders in Rakhaa Agricultural Investment and Development 
Company, as of 31 December 2019 reached ��� .6 million Egyptian pounds, equivalent to its value on 
the date of the financial position, amounting to SAR 72.7 million. The value of that investment has not 
been proven due to the existence of that deficit in the rights of the shareholders according to the 
company's latest audited financial statements. The liquidation procedures of Jannat Agricultural 
Investment Company are still ongoing until the date of the  consolidated  financial position. 

 
12- FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OCI 

Financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income represent an investment in Al-
Reef Sugar Refining Company at a rate of 15% of its capital, where the company's activity is in the 
manufacturing industries and its branches according to industrial licenses, wholesale and retail trade 
with agricultural crops and commercial services, and the purchase and sale of land, ownership, leasing, 
and investment of real estate and the construction of buildings on it and its investment For the 
company. 
The following is a statement of that investment as follows: 

  

31 December 2021 
 

SAR  

��� December ����  
 

SAR 
Al-Reef Sugar Refining Company  45,000,000  45,000,000 
Reserve for revaluation of financial investments at FVOCI  (�,�00,000)  (3,000,000) 
  ��,���,000  42,000,000 

The movement in the reserve for revaluation of financial investments at FVOCI is as follows: 
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31 December 2021 

SAR  
��� December ���� 

SAR 
Balance at the beginning of the year  ����������  41,190,000 
Change in fair value of investments at fair value through 
other comprehensive income  5 900 0000  810,000 
Balance at the end of the year  47 900 000  42,000,000 
 
 

13- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
The related parties represented in the shareholders and senior management personnel in the Group 
and the institutions which own or manage by these actors or individuals as well the institutions 
which practice on these actors/individuals collectively or individually common control and 
significant influence.  
Transactions with related parties are carried out during the normal business cycle on terms similar 
to those between other parties through contracts approved by the management. 
 

13-A Due from related party(non current): 
 Relationship The nature 

of the 
transactions 

01/01/2021G Total 
debit 

transactions 

Total 
credit 

transactions 

31/12/2021G 

Fish Day Company 
for Selling Fish  

Subsidiary Finance 444 313 - 444 313 - 

Total 444 313 - 444 313 - 
 
* Fish Day Company has not been consilidated for the comparative year, as the company was acquired 
during the year 202�*�� DQG� DFFRUGLQJ� WR� WKH� FRPSDQ\¶V� DUWLFOe of association�� WKH� FRPSDQ\¶V� ILUVW�
financial statements are prepared as on December 31, 2021G. 
 
13-B Due to related party: 

 Relationship 
The nature 

of the 
transactions 

01/01/2021G 
Total 
debit 

transactions 

Total 
credit 

transactions 
31/12/2021G 

Sarah Allhmedi 
Rabia Al-Harbi 

Partner in 
Subsidiary 

Finance - - 15 000 15 000 

Total - - 15 000 15 000 
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12-C Compensation to key management personnel: 
key persons are those who have the powers and responsibilities to plan and direct the group's 
operations in a direct and indirect manner.  
 

  31 Dec 2021 
SAR 

 31 Dec 2020 
SAR 

Senior management Staff  ������������   ���������  

Executive Board Members  ����������   �������  
Non-Executive Board 
Members  ��������   �������  

Total�  ���������   ���������  
 
 
 

  

31 December 2021 
 

SAR  

31 December 
2020 
SAR 

Agricultural crops  ���������   ���������  
* existing crops (biological assets)  ����������   ����������  
  ����������   ����������  
 
*The measurement of the fair value of biological assets as on (31/12/2021G) on (31/12/2021G) was 

maked by (The Saudi Company for Assessment and Valuation of Assets), which is an 
independent and accredited valuer who specializes in evaluating the quality of biological assets 
maintained by the company. The advisory data is shown below. 

 
Assessment Basis�Membership No�onQualificati Resident�

According to market value������������
Residents registered with the Saudi 
Authority for Accredited Residents 
(Kingdom of Saudi Arabia)�

According to market value�1210000273�
Residents registered with the Saudi 
Authority for Accredited Residents 
(Kingdom of Saudi Arabia)�

 
 

14- Biological assets 
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14.1 The details of the fair value of biological assets at December 31 are as follows: 
 

  
31 December 2021 

SAR  
31 December 2020 

SAR 
Fair value of the existing crop (shrimp) 
(assessment value of the existing crop)  

�����������  �����������  

net operating expensesnet  
(assessment value of the existing crop)  

������������   ������������  

Profits of revaluation of the existing 
crop  ����������   ���������  

 
 

15- INVENTORY, NET 

  

31 December 2021 
 

SAR  

31 December 2020 
(Audited) 

SAR 
Finished goods  13 170 495  15 605 449 
Raw materials  5 134 080  5 073 944 
Spare parts  2 907 384  2 719 040 
production in progress  49 783  - 
  21 261 742  23 398 433 
(Less): provision for slow-moving goods  (100 000)  (320 000) 
  21 161 742  23 078 433 

 
 

The movement in the provision for slow-moving goods is as follows: 

  

31 December 2021 
 

SAR  

31 December 2020 
(Audited) 

SAR 
Balance at the beginning of the year  (320 000)  (320 000) 
Dedicated�� (provision no longer required)  220 000  - 
Balance at the end of the year  (100 000)  (320 000) 

 
 

16- Accounts receivable ± (Net): 

� 31 December 2021 
SAR  

31 December 2020 
SAR 

Accounts receivable ����������   ���������� 
deduct    
Impairment losses on accounts receivables ������������   ������������ 

 ����������   ���������� 
 

16-1 The provision for impairment of trade receivables was calculated according to the  
expected credit method in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9. 
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16-2 The movement of impairment losses in accounts receivables is as follows: 

31 December 2020 
SAR  

31 December 2021 
SAR ��

���������������������At the beginning of the year�
���������� Formed during the year�
��������� ����������  ��

 
16-3 The aging of accounts receivables as at the date of the financial statements was as follows: 

�
31 December 2020 

SAR  
31 December 2021 

SAR ��
�����������������������Not due (30 days) 
�������������������� From 31 days to 60 days�
���������������������From 61 days to 180 days�
���������������������From 181 days to 360 days��
���������������������More than 360 days�
���������� ����������� �

 
 

17- Advance Payments and Other Debits: 
 31 December 2021 

SAR  
31 December 2020 

SAR 
Advance payments to suppliers � ���  ���  ����������  
Expenses paid in advance ��� ���  ���������  
Receivables staff ��� ���  �������  
Shrimp sales subsidy entitlements -Ministry 
Of Agriculture  �  ���������  

 ���������   ����������  
 
 
18- Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss are represented in the cash available in an 
investment portfolio with Alistithmar Capital, affiliated to the Saudi Investment Bank, and on July 13, 
2021, the portfolio was closed and its value transferred to the banks. 
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19- Cash and cash equivalents: 

 31 December 2021 
SAR  

31 December 2020 
SAR 

Cash at Banks - Current Accounts �� ��� ���  ���������  

Cash 158 141  �������  
 �� ��� ���  ���������  

 
 

20- Capital: 
The capital of the company is 500 000 000 SAR (2020: 500 000 000 SAR) 50,000,000 shares of 10 
riyals each, fully paid up. 
 
 

21- Statutory reserve: 
In accordance witK� WKH�*URXS¶V�$UWLFOHV� RI�$VVRciation and the Companies Law in the Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia, the Group must annually transfer 10% of its net income to a statutory reserve until this 
statutory reserve reaches 30% of its capital. This reserve is not distributable to shareholders. 
 
 

22- Loans: 
First: the current portion of long-term loans 

�
31 December 2021 

SAR  
31 December 2020) 

SAR 
Al Rajhi Bank� ���������   ����������

Agricultural Development Fund� ���������   ��������� 
 ���������   ���������� 

 
 

Second: long-term loans: 
 31 December 2021 

SAR  
31 December 2020 

SAR 
Al Rajhi Bank� ���������   ���������  

Agricultural Development Fund� ����������   �  
 ����������   ���������  
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The loans represent as below: 
- On 22 Dhu al-Qi'dah 1431 AH (31 October 2010), the Jazan Energy And Development Company 

signed a long-term loan agreement with the Saudi Agricultural Development Fund of SAR 20,999,997 
to finance the shrimp breeding project, The loan is secured by marginalizing the title deeds of land 
within property, plant and equipment, the loan agreement included conditions regarding the Jazan 
Energy And Development Company commitment to some financial ratios and conditions, the loan is 
to be repaid in ten installments, the first installment is due on 22 Dhul-Qi'dah 1433 AH (corresponding 
to 8 October 2012 ) and the last installment on 03 Dhul-Hijah 1443 AH (corresponding to 2 July 
2022). 
- On 08-08-1442 (March 21, 2021), Jazan Energy and Development Company signed a long-term 
loan agreement with the Saudi Agricultural Development Fund in the amount of 15,000,000 SAR 
for the purpose of financing the shrimp breeding project. The loan is secured by mortgaging land 
titles within Property, machinery, equipment and investment real estate. The loan agreement 
included conditions regarding the commitment of Jazan Energy and Development Company to 
some ratios and financial terms. The amount of 15,000 SAR will be paid in one installment on 07-
10-1444 (corresponding to March 21, 2023). 
- On 08-08-1442 AH (March 21, 2021 AD), Jazan Energy and Development Company signed a 
long-term loan agreement with the Saudi Agricultural Development Fund in the amount of SAR 
5,902 781. An amount of SAR 3,224,525 was received for the purpose of financing the shrimp 
breeding project, the loan Guaranteed by mortgaging land title deeds within property, machinery, 
equipment and investment properties. The loan agreement included conditions regarding the 
commitment of Jazan Energy and Development Company to certain ratios and financial terms. 
The first installment is to be paid on March 21, 2024. 
- On 17 Shawwal 1438 AH (corresponding to 11 July 2017), the Jazan Energy And Development 

Company signed a loan agreement with Al-Rajhi Bank to be repaid in semi-annual installments of 
SAR 14,996,712 for Financing Projects for the Jazan Energy and Development Group, the loan is 
secured by a mortgage on buildings included in real estate investments and assignment of annual rents 
for the mortgaged buildings, the loan agreement included conditions regarding the Jazan Energy And 
Development Company commitment to some financial ratios and conditions, the first installment due 
on 9 Jumada Al-Akhir 1440 AH (corresponding to 14 February  2019) and the last installment on 19 
Muharram 1445 AH (corresponding to 16 August  2023). 
The movement in long-term loans is as follows: 

  
31 December 2021 

SAR  
31 December 2020 

SAR 
Balance at the beginning of the year  ����������   17 866 894 
Additions during the year  ����������   � 
Paid from loans during the year  ������������   (1 794 452) 
Total  ����������   16 072 442 
Less of the present value of loan balances  ������������   (35 910) 
Deduction of interest for loans  ����������   - 
Less of expedited payment from the Agricultural 
Development Fund  ������������   � 
Balance at the end of the year  ����������   16 036 532 
Current portion of long-term loans  ���������   11 961 557 
Non-current portion of long-term loans  ����������   4 074 975 
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Below are the maturities of the loan: 

Year  31 December 2021 
SAR  

31 December 2020 
SAR 

����  �  6 009 905 
����  �  5 951 652 
����  ���������   4 074 975 
����  ����������   � 
2024  �������   - 
����  �������   � 
����  �������   � 
����  �������   � 
����  �������   � 
����  �������   � 
����  �������   � 
Deduct: the present value of the loan balances and the 
expense provided for loans ������������   � 
  ����������   16 036 532 

 
23- Employee benefit obligations: 

- The Group operates a defined benefit plan (as defined in IAS 19) that provides a lump-sum bonus 
when an employee leaves the Group, in line with the current labor law in the Kingdom of Saudi 
Arabia. 
The amount of the benefit is calculated according to the labor laws in the Kingdom, and this is based 
on the years of service and the salary on the date of departure. The plan and its obligations are 
therefore more sensitive to changes in future salary increases, future withdrawal rates, and the discount 
rate used in evaluating the obligations. 
- The group is not required to fund the plan, so the group has chosen to honor the payment of benefits 
when they become due. 
- Plan obligations were assessed using the projected unit credit method in accordance with the 
requirements of IAS 19. Since the amount and timing of accrued benefits in the future is not currently 
known, assumptions have been made to value obligations related to past service, separately from 
obligations related to accrual cost These assumptions have been derived using methodologies that 
comply with the requirements of IAS 19. 
- Any changes in assumptions over time that reflect changes in financial, economic, and demographic 
conditions. When future experiences do not match the applicable assumptions, that change is 
recognized in the statement of other comprehensive income in future financial years. 
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Movement in the net defined benefit obligation: 
� 31 December 2021 

SAR  
31 December 2020 

SAR 
Balance on January 1 ���������� � ����������
Add: included in the list of profits or losses � � �
Current service cost ���������� � ��������� 
Interest cost �������� � ������� 
 ���������� � ��������� 
Add: included in the statement of other 
comprehensive income 

� � �
(Profit)/actuarial loss ����������� � ��������
Movement in cash: � � �
Paid benefits ����������� � �������������
Balance at December 31 ���������� � ����������

 
23-2 Actuarial Assumptions: 
The assessment of the defined benefit obligations of the employHHV¶� HQG� Rf service benefit plan has 
EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�ZLWK�WKH�DVVLVWDQFH�RI�WKH�*URXS¶V�DFWXDU\�XVLQJ�WKH�following key assumptions: 

 31 December 2021  31 December 2020 
Discount rate �����   �����   
Expected rate of salary increase ��   ��   
Assumed retirement age for males  
(in years) 

��  ��  

Assumed retirement age for females (in 
years) 

��  ��  
Average turnover rate (staff turnover) average 13%  average 13%  
Death rate 80  80  

 
23-3 Sensitivity Analysis: 
��7KH�VHQVLWLYLW\�RI�WKH�GHILQHG benefit obligation to changes in the key weighted assumptions is: 

� � ����� �����
� Change in 

assumptions�
change in 

nobligatio�
percentage change 

ligationobin �
� change in 

obligation�
percentage change 

in obligation�
Discount rate 
 

���� ���������� ��������� � ������� ��������� 
���� ���������� ������� � ����� ��������� 

Salary inflation 
 

���� ��������� ������� � ����� ��������� 
����

��������� ��������� 
�

������� ��������� 
death rate 
 

����� ��������� ��������� � ����� ��������� 
���� ��������� ������ � ������ ����������

rotation rate ����� ��������� �������� � �������� ��������� 
���� ���������� ������� � ����� ��������� 
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- The above sensitivity analyzes are based on a change in the assumption with all other assumptions 
held constant. In practice, this is unlikely, as changes in some assumptions may be correlated. When 
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the 
same method (the present value of the defined benefit obligation computed using the projected unit 
credit method at the end of the reporting period) was applied when calculating the defined benefit 
obligation recognized in the statement of financial position. 
 

24- Commitment against an associate's loan guarantee 
On October 24, 2016, the Saudi Fund for Development notified Jannat Agricultural Investment 
Company that as of October 24, 2016 the loan due to the Fund from Rakhaa Agricultural Investment 
and Development Company (an associate company) was implicitly transferred to the guarantors of 
the loan with a guarantee of fine and performance and demanding the guarantor partners promptly 
pay the obligations The consequences of the partners, as Jazan Energy and Development Company 
(JAZADCO) is a partner in Jannat Agricultural Investment Company, so a provision has been made 
in the amount equivalent to the loan guarantee percentage of Jazan Energy and Development 
Company (JAZADCO), which is 18.85% in the amount of SAR 18,771 396  
The movement of the commitment against the loan guarantee of an associate company is as follows: 

  

31 December 2021 
SAR  31 December 2020 

SAR 

31 December 2019 
SAR 

Balance at the beginning of the year  14 619 841  14 619 841 ����������  
The repayment of the obligation against the 
balance owed by a related party  �  � 

������������  

Balance at the end of the year  14 619 841  14 619 841 14 619 841 
 
 
 

25- Accrued expenses, and other creditors 

 
31 December 2021 

SAR  31 December 2020 
SAR 

Accrued expenses ��������   ����������
Advance payments from clients �������   �������� 
Prepaid revenue ���������   �����������
Dues of members of the board of directors  743 016  706 766�
Dues of executive committees 591 000  537 000�
Value added tax �������   ����������
Underwriting creditors �������   ��������
Third party insurances �������   ��������
Good execution guarantees �������   ��������
Deferred interest income ���������   �������

 ���������  ��������� 
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26- Zakat: 
31 December 2020 

SAR  31 December 2021 
SAR 

26.1 Movement of Zakat Provision: 

����������   ����������  At the beginning of the year 
���������   ���������  Formed during the year 

����������   ������������  Provsions used  
����������   ����������  � 

 
26-2 Zakat position: 

JAZAN ENERGY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY (JAZADCO)  
The years from 2006 to 2010: 
The General Authority of Zakat and Income issued the amended zakat and tax assessment by 
imposing additional zakat in the amount of SAR 11 844 023 and withholding tax (paid in excess) in 
the amount of SAR 1,134,079, as the coPSDQ\¶V�REMHFWLRQ�WR�WKH�DPHQGHG�DVVHVVPHQW�LV�VWLOO�LQ�Whe 
objection stage with the authority. 
 
The years from 2014 to 2018: 
The General Authority for Zakat and Income issued a zakat assessment on the company for those 
years by imposing an additional zakat in the amount of 4,434 244 Saudi riyals. The zakat differences 
demanded by the authority in the initial assessment were reduced, and the final additional difference 
was objected to, and the objection was escalated before the tax chapter committees and a committee 
decision was issued Separation for the years from 2015 to 2018 by accepting the land discount clause 
- one of the clauses affecting the differences - and the rest of the clauses have been resumed, and it is 
expected that the total additional claims will be reduced by more than 50%. As for the year 2014, it is 
still before the primary dismissal committees. It is expected that the depDUWPHQW¶V�GHFision will be in 
favor of the company by approximately 50%. 
 
Years 2019, 2020: 
The Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority issued the zakat assessment by imposing an additional zakat 
of SAR 1,426,660 for the year 2019, and the amount of SAR 1 920 951 for the year 2020. And 
DZDLWLQJ�WKH�DXWKRULW\¶V�GHFLVLRQ�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH������REMHFWLRQ. 
The objections submitted by the company are based on the zakat system and the executive 
regulations, and it is expected that the total claims of the authority will decrease by 50%. 
 
- Jazan Mango Company 

Year 2020: 
- The company submitted its zakat declaration for the year 2020 and obtained a certificate that 
expires on 30/04/2022. The company did not respond to any inquiries or assesments in this regard. 
 
Fish Day Company to sell fish: 
The company has registered with the General Authority for Zakat and Income, and the Zakat return 
will be submitted for the period from 10/12/2020 to 31/12/2021. 
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27- EARNING PER SHARE  

Basic and diluted earnings per share from net income is calculated by dividing the net income for the 
year by the weighted average number of shares outstanding at the end of the year amounting to 
50,000,000 shares (31 December 2020: 50,000,000 shares) 

 
 

28- Activity Revenues: 
�

��
����� � �����

Shrimp sales � ���������� � ���������� 
Water sales � ���������� � ���������� 
Rental income � ���������� � ���������� 
Fruit sales � ��������� � ��������� 
Mountain coffee sales � ���������� � ��������

� � ���������� � �����������
 
 

29- Cost of revenue: 
 � ����� � �����
Materials used � 627�272�27 � �����������
Labor wages � ����������� � ���������� 
Depreciation and amortization � ����������� � ���������� 
Other operating expenses � ����������� � ���������� 
Change in Inventory � ���������� � ����������
 � ���������� � ���������� 
 
 

30- Selling and distribution expenses: 
  ���1  ���0 
Salaries, wages and equivalents  ���������   2 910 386 
Shipping and transportation expenses  ���������   567 619 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  499 886  469 043 
Maintenance and fuel  294 379  319 898 
Fees and subscriptions  �������   151 756 
commissions  �������   142 762 
Advertising  �������   116 915 
Insurance  �������   112 550 
Rent  ������   � 
Distribution expenses  �������   � 
Other  �������   �������  
  ���������   ���������  
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31- General and administrative expenses: 
  ����  ���� 

Wages, salaries and equivalents  �����������   9 ��� ��� 
Studies and consultations  1 ��� ���  1 ������  

250��� Fees, subscriptions and insurance  2 ��� ���  �������  
Bonuses for Executive Committee  ����������  

 

 �������  
Bonuses for Executive Committee  ��������   �������  
Repair, maintenance and fuel  843������  �������  
Electricity, water and cleaning  ��������   �������  
Rents  ��������   �������  
Value added tax  �������   � 
Mail and phone  �������   ������  
Donations and donations  �������   � 
Hospitality  �������   ������  
Consumption and amortization  ����������  

 

 �������  
Stationery and prints  �������   ������  
Other  ����������   ���������  
Projects in progress closed  ����������   � 
Zakat differences  �������   � 
Bank commissions  ��������   � 

  ����������   ����������  
 
 

32- Other income/(expenses): 
  ����  ���� 
Shrimp sales support - Ministry of Agriculture  ���������   ���������  
Lock out insurances for others  �  ���������  
Good execution guarantees  �  �������  
Provsions no longer required   �������   � 
Deferred grant interest (present value of loans)  �������   � 
Delivery service revenue  ������   � 
Other  ������   � 
  ���������   ���������  
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33- Financing cost: 
  ����  ���� 

Loan interest  �������   �������  
Amortization of deferred financing expenses  �������   � 
Benefits of lease liabilities  ������   � 
Interest on the defined benefit obligation  �������   � 
  �������   �������  

 
 

34- Capital commitments: 
As on December 31, 2021, the capital commitments related to the capital business of the group 
amounted to SAR 2,473,964 (December 31, 2020: SAR 4,239,300). 
 
 

35- SEGMENT INFORMATION 
Segment information relates to the group's activities DQG�EXVLQHVV��ZKLFK� WKH�JURXS¶V�PDQDJHPHQW�KDV�
relied on as a basis for preparing its financial information, in line with internal reporting methods. 
Transactions between sectors are carried out on the same terms as dealing with other parties. 

 
The sectors ¶RSHUDWLQJ� DVVHWV�� OLDELOLWLHV�� DQG� RSHUDWLQJ� DFWLYLWLHV� LQFOXGH items directly related to a 
specific sector and items that can be distributed among the different sectors on a reasonable basis. Items 
that cannot be distributed between sectors are classified under the heading of joint assets and liabilities. 
The group sectors are as follows: 
- The agricultural sector, where the group cultivates and reaps shrimp, in addition to the fruit farm. 
- The commercial sector, where the group purifies and distributes bottled mineral water. 
- Investment properties sector, where the group leases buildings for commercial and residential purposes. 

 

The following is a summary of the financial segments information for the two years ended 31 December 
2021 and 31 December 2020, respectively, according to the nature of the activity: 

 

Agricultural 
sector 
SAR 

Commercial 
sector 
SAR 

Investment 
properties sector 

SAR 

 
Total  
SAR 

For the year ended 31 December 2021:      
Revenues ����������  ����������  ����������  ����������  
Gross profit ����������  ���������  ���������  ����������  

     

For the year ended 31 December 2020: 

Agricultural 
sector 
SAR 

Commercial 
sector 
SAR 

Investment 
properties sector 

SAR 

 
Total 
SAR 

For the year ended 31 December 2020:      
Revenues ����������  ����������  ����������  ����������  
Gross profit ����������  ���������  ���������  ����������  
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The following is a summary of the financial segments information as of 31 December 2021, 31 
December 2020, respectively, according to the nature of the activity: 

 

Agricultural 
sector 
SAR 

Commercial 
sector 
SAR 

Investment 
properties sector 

SAR 

 
Total  
SAR 

As of 31 December 2021 :     
Total assets �����������  ����������  �����������  �����������  
Total liabilities ����������  ����������  ����������  ����������  
As of 31 December 2020 
(Audited): 

    
Total assets �����������  ����������  �����������  �����������  
Total liabilities ����������  ����������  ���������  ����������  

 
 

36- FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT 
Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments 
associated with financial instruments that the group commits to in the interest of others. 
To reduce the liquidity risk and associated losses which may affect the business of the Group, the group 
maintains, wherever possible, sufficient highly liquid current assets in all business conditions. The Group 
avoids financing long-term capital requirements through short-term borrowing. Long-term projects are 
currently funded with long-term loans only. The Group has a highly dynamic cash flow policy and a 
system by which it can estimate the maturity dates of its liabilities and develop appropriate plans to 
provide the required funding to meet these liabilities in a timely manner. 
 
The following is the maturities of assets and liabilities as of 31 December 2021, and 31 December 2020: 
 

31 December 2021 
3 months  

or less 
SAR 

More than 3 
months to 1 year 

SAR 

More than 1 year 
up to 10 years 

SAR 

No specific 
maturity dates 

SAR 

Total 
SAR 

Assets      
Accounts receivable, prepaid expenses 
and other debtors, net  �����������  � � � �����������  
Total �����������  � � � �����������  
      
Liabilities ����������  �����������  � � �����������  
Long-term loans  ������  �  ������  
Distributions of shareholders' entitlements � � ����������  � ����������  
(PSOR\HHV¶�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�Slan 
obligations  �  ����������  ����������  
A commitment against the loan guarantee 
of an associate � � � �����������  �����������  
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and 
other creditors  �����������  � � �����������  
Zakat provision  �����������  � � �����������  
Total ����������  �����������  ����������  �����������  �����������  
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31 December 2020 
3 months  

or less 
SAR 

More than 3 
months to 1 year 

SAR 

More than 1 year 
up to 10 years 

SAR 

No specific 
maturity dates 

SAR 

Total 
SAR 

Assets      
Accounts receivable, prepaid expenses 
and other debtors, net  ����������� ����������� �� �� �����������
Total ����������� ����������� �� �� �����������
 � � � � �
Liabilities � � � � �
Long-term loans  �����������  ����������   �����������  
Distributions of shareholders' entitlements � ����������  �  ����������  
EmSOR\HHV¶�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�SODQ�
obligations � � � ����������  ����������  
A commitment against the loan guarantee 
of an associate � � � �����������  �����������  
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and 
other creditors ����������  �����������  � � �����������  
Zakat provision ����������  �����������  � � �����������  
Total ����������  �����������  ����������  �����������  �����������  

 
Market price risk 
Market risk is the risk that arises from changes in the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments 
due to changes in market prices. Market rates have 3 types: Interest rate risk. Currency risk and other price 
risks such as Shares price risk and commodity price risk, and includes financial liabilities affected by market 
price risk on loans, accounts receivables, and payables. 
Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that arises from changes in the fair value of future cash flows of financial 
instruments because of a change in the interest rate of the market. The group's financial assets and liabilities 
as of the balance sheet date, except for long-term loans, are not exposed to interest rate risk. Long-term loans 
carry interest in addition to credit margin based on prevailing market interest rates. 
 
Credit risk: 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will not be able to meet its obligations, and this 
will cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a financial 
loss if the customer or counterparty fails to fulfill its contractual obligations. It arises mainly from trade 
receivables, cash and cash equivalents. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum 
exposure to credit risk. 
 

 
Financial instruments 

31 December 
2021�

� 31 December 
2020�

Trade receivables (net) 37 375 244 
�

� 28 345 727 
�Cash and Cash equivalent �� ��� ��� � ���������  

� ���������� � ����������  
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Currency risk  
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Group's primary transactions are in Saudi riyals and US dollars. Management monitors 
currency fluctuations. 
 
Fair value 
Fair value is is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value definition 
includes the assumption that the Group will continue its operations where there is no intention or 
condition to physically limit the volume of its operations or conduct a transaction with negative 
terms. 
Fair values are categorized into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used 
in the valuation methods as follows: 
Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets. 
Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 
 
Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable. 
 
- If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the 
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized entirely in the same level of the 
fair value hierarchy where the lowest level of the input is material to the entire measurement. 
 
The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
year in which the change occurred. During the year ended December 31, 2021G and December 31, 
2020, there were no transfers between the Level 1 and Level 2 fair value levels. 
Where the Group's financial instruments are grouped on the historical cost basis, except for 
investments which are carried at fair value and vital assets, differences may arise between carrying 
value and fair value estimates. Management believes that the fair values of the Group's financial 
assets and liabilities are not materially different from their book values. 
 
 

December 31, 2021 
Book value 

     
 Level one Level two Level three Total 
Financial instruments     
     
Investments at fair value through 
other comprehensive income 

� � 47 900 000 
 

47 900 000 
 

Biological assets Shrimp � ����������  � ����������  
 � ����������  47 900 000 ����������  
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�� December 2021 
Book value 

 

 Financial 
Assets at fair 

value 
Financial Assets 
at amortized cost Total 

Financial Assets    
Trade Receivalvles � ����������  ����������  
Investments at fair value through OCI ����������  � ����������  
Biological assets ����������  � ����������  
other debtors � ���������  ���������  
Cash and cash equivalents � ����������  ����������  
 ����������  ����������  �����������  

 

 
 Financial 

Liabilites at 
fair value 

Financial 
Liabilites at 

amortized cost 
Total 

Fianacial Liabilities    
Loans � ����������  ����������  
Lease Liabilities � �������  �������  
Trade payable � ����������  ����������  
Commitment against the loan guarantee of 
an associate 

� ����������  ����������  
Due to shareholders � ���������  ���������  
Accrued expenses, and other creditors � ���������  ���������  
 � ����������  ����������  

 
 
 

 December 31, 2020 
Book value 

 
� � �   
� Level one Level two Level three Total 

Financial instruments �    
 �� � ���������� 

 �����������

Investments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income �� ����������� �� �����������

Biological assets Shrimp ��������  � ��������
� �������� ���������� ���������� �����������
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�� December 2020 
Book value 

 

 Financial 
Assets at fair 

value 
Financial Assets 
at amortized cost Total 

Financial Assets    
Trade Receivalvles � �����������  �����������  
Investments at fair value through OCI �����������  � �����������  
Investments at fair value through profit and 
loss 

��������  
� 

��������  

Biological assets �����������  
 

� �����������  
 other debtors � �����������  �����������  

Cash and cash equivalents � ����������  ����������  
 ����������  ����������  102 258 099 

 

 
 Financial 

Liabilites at 
fair value 

Financial 
Liabilites at 

amortized cost 
Total 

Fianacial Liabilities    
Loans � �����������  �����������  
Trade payable � ����������  ����������  
Commitment against the loan guarantee of 
an associate 

� �����������  �����������  
Due to shareholders � ����������  ����������  
Accrued expenses, and other creditors � ����������  ����������  
 � ����������  ����������  

 
37- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS: 

Management believes that there have not been any significant subsequent events since the end of the year 
that would require disclosure or amendment to these consolidated financial statements. 
 
 
 

38- IMPORTANT MATTERS  
The presence of the new coronavirus (Covid19) was confirmed in late 2019G and spread in early 2020 
around the world, and is still continuing until 2022G, causing disruptions in commercial activities and 
economic activity. Group management considers this outbreak a non-adjustable event on the balance 
sheet. As the situation is volatile and rapidly evolving, however, these events are not expected to have a 
material impact on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern as the Group has sufficient liquidity 
available to continue to meet its financial obligations for the foreseeable future as they become due. 
 
 
 
 



 
JAZAN ENERGY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY (JAZADCO)  
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY) 
 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED �� DECEMBER ����  

 

�� 
 

��- COMPARATIVE FIGURES 
- Some comparative figures have been reclassified for some items of the statement of financial position 

within the yearly consolidated financial statemeQWV� DV� RQ�'HFHPEHU� ���� ������ZKLFK�ZHUH� SUHVHQWHG� LQ�
those consolidated financial statements and explained as follows:- 

 
 

 

 
��- GOING CONCERN OF ONE OF THE SUBSIDIARIES: 

Fish Day Company (a limited liability company) (subsidiary FRPSDQ\��DFKLHYHG�RQ�'HFHPEHU����������D�
net loss RI�����������6DXGL� Uiyals, and accumulated losses amounWHG� WR� ��� ��������6DXGL� UL\DOV��ZKLFK�
exceeds WKH�FRPSDQ\¶V�FDSLWDO��ZLWK�ZKLFK�$UWLFOH�1R������RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�/DZ�PXVW�EH�DSSOLHG��call 
the partners to consider the continuity of the company or its dissolution before the term specified in its 
contract. The partners have decided that the subsidiary company will continue to carry out its activities 
and provide it with financial support, and this is being noted in the commercial registry and published in 
accordance with the requirements of the regulatory. 
 
 

��- APPROVAL OF THE  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
These  consolidated  financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 
 �� /��/����H (corresponding to �� /��/ ���� G). 

A-Describtion  
Property, plant and 

equipment, net  
Investment 

properties, net 

Balance DV�DW����-DQXDU\������EHIRUH�DGMXVWPHQW ������������   ������������  
Reclassification of land on which leased buildings are 
constructed 

����������  
 

��������  

%DODQFH�DV�DW����-DQXDU\������DIWHU�DGMXVWPHQW �����������   �����������  

B-Describtion  
Investment in 

subsudries  

Due from related 
parties (non-

current) 
Balance DV�DW����-DQXDU\������EHIRUH�DGMXVWPHQW ���������  ��������� 
Reclassification of due balance of Related parties ���������  ������� 
%DODQFH�DV�DW����-DQXary �����DIWHU�DGMXVWPHQt �������  ������� 

C-Describtion  Accumulated lossess  

Reserve for 
revaluation of 
investments at 

fair value 
through OCI 

Balance DV�DW����-DQXDU\������EHIRUH�DGMXVWPHQW ������������  �� �������� 
Reclassification of due balance of Related parties �������)  ������ 
%DODQFH�DV�DW����-DQXDU\������DIWHU�DGMXVWPHQW ������������  ����������� 
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